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Pak Qatar Group stands as Pakistan's premier and pioneer Islamic financial services group,
offering a comprehensive range of savings and protection solutions that adhere to the principles
of Sharia-compliant finance. With a steadfast commitment to excellence and a strong emphasis
on Islamic values, the group encompasses esteemed companies such as Pak-Qatar Investment
(Private) Limited, Pak-Qatar Family Takaful Limited, Pak-Qatar General Takaful Limited, and
Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company Limited.

At the heart of its operations, Pak-Qatar Investments excels in providing independent
assessments and exclusive investment recommendations to its esteemed clientele. Backed by a
team of seasoned experts and a deep understanding of the financial landscape, Pak-Qatar
Investments guides individuals and organizations towards prudent investment decisions that align
with their unique goals and Islamic finance principles.

Pak-Qatar Family Takaful and Pak-Qatar General Takaful embody the essence of solidarity and
shared responsibility, delivering comprehensive Takaful (Islamic insurance) coverage that adheres
to the principles of cooperation and mutual support. Through innovative and Sharia-compliant
savings & protection solutions, these entities provide individuals, families, and businesses with
reliable protection against unforeseen risks, ensuring peace of mind, supplemented by market
competitive returns on their investments under unit-linked life Takfaul policies.

Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company plays a pivotal role within the group, offering expert
guidance and proficiently managing investments funds in strict adherence to Islamic finance
principles. With a focus on thorough research, market analysis, and prudent risk management
practices, Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company strives to maximize returns while maintaining
ethical investment standards.

With an unwavering commitment to excellence, integrity, customer satisfaction and Shariah
compliance, Pak-Qatar Group has established a remarkable track record in Pakistan's financial
industry. By combining cutting-edge financial solutions with the guiding principles of Islamic
finance, the group continues to set new industry benchmarks. As a trusted partner, Pak-Qatar
Group empowers individuals and organizations to navigate the financial landscape with
confidence and integrity, fostering their prosperity and financial well-being.

PAK-QATAR  PAK-QATAR PAK-QATAR  PAK-QATAR

INVESTMENT FAMILY TAKAFUL L SSET MANAGEMENT GENERAL TAKAFUL

Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company Limited



Introduction

Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company Limited
(PQAMC) is at the forefront of Islamic asset
management, ushering in a new era of smart
investments designed to enrich your financial
journey. Our mission is to elevate your lifestyle
through strategic investment choices that offer
Riba-free returns. With a commitment to
excellence, PQAMC is your partner in securing a
prosperous future.

PQAMC is part of Pak Qatar Group (Pakistan's
premier and pioneer Islamic financial services
group), offering a comprehensive range of savings
and protection solutions that adhere to the
principles of Sharia-compliant finance. With a
steadfast commitment to excellence and a strong

emphasis on Islamic values, the group
encompasses esteemed companies such as
Pak-Qatar  Investment  (Private)  Limited,

Pak-Qatar Family Takaful Limited, Pak-Qatar
General Takaful Limited, and Pak-Qatar Asset
Management Company Limited.

PQAMC takes immense pride in its esteemed
patronage with industry leaders such as
Pak-Qatar Investment Private Limited, Pak-Qatar
Family Takaful Limited — a pioneering force in
Pakistan’s Family Takaful landscape, and FWU AG
— a distinguished German entity specializing in
Asset Management and Family Takaful across
Europe and the Middle East. This collaboration
establishes a solid foundation for PQAMC's
unwavering commitment to excellence and
innovation.

Backed by strong sponsors and guided by Islamic
principles, our journey began with the grant of an
asset management and advisory services license
by SECP in December 2021. By September 2022,
we had fulfilled all regulatory requirements,
marking our official entry into the market in
October 2022. PQAMC proudly became the
second pure Islamic asset management company
to initiate commercial operations.

The trust bestowed upon us by our investors
stands as a testament to our unwavering
dedication to excellence.
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In a mere eight months of operations, we attained
a remarkable milestone, by achieving Assets
Under Management (AUM) of PKR 11.2 Billion
(as of June 30th, 2023).

These assets are skillfully managed by
experienced fund managers, overseeing a range
of collective investment schemes that have
garnered laudable ratings from PACRA. These
ratings encompass a "AA" (Very High Credit
Quality) rating to an "A" (High Credit Quality
Rating), all backed by a stable outlook. At
PQAMC, we are dedicated to Shariah-compliant
investment solutions. Guided by our esteemed
Shariah Advisor and Board, we meticulously
select asset classes and conduct regular
screenings for Shariah compliance. Our rigorous
approach to research, market analysis, and risk
management is designed to optimize returns
while upholding ethical investment practices.

PQAMC operates under the regulatory purview
of the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP) and is a proud member of the
Mutual Fund Association of Pakistan (MUFAP).
The Central Depositary Company (CDC)
ensures the safety and compliance of investments,
reflecting our commitment to transparency and
accountability.

In the digital age, PQAMC leads with innovation.
We offer the convenience of opening your
investment account online, allowing you to begin
your Riba-free investment journey seamlessly
through our innovative digital onboarding
process. Our digital platform empowers you to
manage your investments, make fund transfers,
view portfolio details, and track performance, all
with a few clicks. Experience the digital journey
through our digital platforms. Through our digital
solutions, you can invest in our funds via the
inbuilt payment solution, offering options ranging
from a payment aggregator, IBFT, RTGS, or
cheque.

PQAMC has a presence across all major cities in
Pakistan
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Our Vision:

To be the most progressive Fund Manager providing investment
solutions to everyone tailored for their needs.

Our Mission:

® l|dentifying ingenious ways by enabling potential investors to
maximize their investments.

® Using Technology to provide a digitized platform for every
investment need.

® Providing predictive research based on Quant Model.
e Shariah Compliance at its core in every respect.
® Ensuring value-for-money for all stakeholders.

e Outperforming the contemporaries at all times.

Our Values:

® Trusted, Secure, Reliable.
e Expeditious & Quality Service.
e Convenience, Secure & Optimum Return.

e Shariah Compliance.

Annual Report 2023 05



Al

3

PAK-QATAR

ASSET MANAGEMENT

Directors' Report — Funds Under Management Company

The Board of Directors of Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company Limited is pleased to present the
financial statements of the following open-end funds for the period ended June 30, 2023.

Economic Review

FY23 proved to be a challenging year for the country, with GDP growth hampered by unprecedented
floods, external price shocks, international slowdown, hyperinflation, and currency devaluation. These
factors contributed to a growth slowdown, reaching an abysmal low of approximately 0.3%, with all major
sectors — Agriculture, Industry, and Services — falling behind targeted projections. Agriculture and Services
sectors grew marginally by 1.5% and 0.86%, respectively. Floods caused by climate change devastated
many major crops, inducing price shocks and supply disruptions. The decline in Agricultural output of two
major crops, cotton and rice, by 58% and around 22%, respectively, exacerbated the impact of the
commodity super-cycle. The spike in global conflicts, such as the Ukrainian conflict, also added to
inflationary trends worldwide. A secondary impact of this decline was also visible in the industrial sector,
which decelerated by 2.9%.

The industrial sector faced headwinds due to global slowdown, SBP restrictions, currency devaluation,
and import rationalization to manage the Current Account deficit, resulting in restrictions on LCs and
forced shutdowns for many industries. Inflationary pressures and a tight fiscal space elevated poverty and
unemployment, and the decline in per capita income from government estimates of USD 1,765 in FY22 to
USD 1,568 reaffirms a loss in consumption propensity. Investor confidence was also shattered, as Total
Foreign Investment during FY23 stood at USD 430 million, compared to USD 1,858 million in FY22. The
government continued to walk a tight rope in meeting external maturities and made desperate efforts to
secure the IMF deal by agreeing to harsh economic reforms. The country managed to secure a Stand-by
Agreement (SBA) signed with the IMF board for approximately USD 3 billion, with the first tranche of USD
1.2 billion being released. The SBA came with its set of conditions, including the removal of import
restrictions, a market-based exchange rate, and SBP autonomy in monetary operations. The government
remained focused on bolstering SBP foreign exchange reserves, which at one point depleted to around
USD 3 billion. Chinese loans and deposits from GCC countries became vital lifelines to avoid a declared
default. Total Debt increased from PKR 47,832 billion to PKR 60,839 billion during the fiscal year, forming
around seventy percent of GDP. Simultaneously, this increase was reflected in the fiscal space, where
Interest Expenditure accounted for around sixty percent of Total Consolidated Federal Revenue. Despite
achieving a revenue collection of PKR 7,818 billion, the government ended up with a Primary Deficit of
PKR 690 billion. The country will continue to adhere to the IMF reforms agenda with strict timelines, while
also exploring new mechanisms to attract FDIs and align the country with regional economies.

Money Market Review

During the review period, the central bank raised the policy rate by 825 bps from 13.75% to 22% to meet
IMF conditions, control inflationary pressures, curtail demands, and alleviate pressure from external
balances to address the weakening rupee. Due to the continuous hike in the monetary policy rate, yields
for 3M, 6M, and 12M T-bills surged significantly and reached 22%, 21.97%, and 22%, respectively, while

06 Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company Limited
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yields for 3Y, 5Y, and 10Y PIBs settled at 19.47%, 16.08%, and 15.32%, respectively. Yields for 3 Months, 6
Months, and 12 Months KIBOR saw robust growth, increasing by 775 bps, 762 bps, and 754 bps,
respectively. On the liquidity front, the monetary market remained stable due to regular short and
medium Open Market Operations (OMO) from SBP, ensuring that overnight rates remained close to the
monetary policy rate. The following changes were observed on a YoY basis in KIBOR, T-Bills, and PIBs:

Description 30-Jun-22 30-Jun-23 Change (YoY)
KIBOR 1 Month 14.16% 22.54% 838.00
KIBOR 3 Months 15.16% 22.91% 775.00
KIBOR 6 Months 15.35% 22.97% 762.00
KIBOR 12 Months 15.73% 23.27% 754.00
T-Bill 3 Months 14.98% 22.00% 702.00
T-Bill 6 Months 15.15% 21.97% 682.00
T-Bill 12 Months 15.30% 22.00% 670.00
PIB 3 Year 13.45% 19.47% 602.00
PIB 5 Year 12.93% 16.08% 315.00
PIB 10 Year 12.92% 15.32% 240.00

During FY23, the market displayed significant interest in T-Bills, participating with PKR 41.9 trillion, of
which the government accepted PKR 24.6 trillion. Due to ongoing monetary policy tightening, heavy
participation was observed in 3M T-bills, accounting for 73% of total participation in T-Bills. Overall,
market participation in 3M, 6M, and 12M T-bills was PKR 30.6 trillion, PKR 6.3 trillion, and PKR 4.9 trillion,
respectively. In Fixed Rate PIBs, the market participated with PKR 4.1 trillion, of which the government
accepted PKR 1.0 trillion. In floating PIBs, the market participated with PKR 8.2 trillion, of which the
government accepted PKR 5.3 trillion. The central bank regularly conducted GoP ljarah Sukuk Auctions,
witnessing healthy participation from financial institutions.

Government ljarah Fixed Rate Rental (FRR) Securities continued to face the impact of rising monetary
policy rates, with instrument prices falling. On the other hand, the Central Bank began auctioning 1-Year
and 3-Year tenor GoP ljarah securities to broaden its access to untapped market funds that prefer shorter
tenors. The market remained biased toward variable rate ljara sukuk. Total participation in the variable
rate ljara sukuk auction was PKR 1296 billion, with the government accepting PKR 736 billion against the
total target of PKR 1205 billion. However, PKR 331 billion in participation was observed in the fixed-rate
ljara sukuk auction, and the government accepted PKR 135 billion against the total target of PKR 415
billion.

Rising interest rates, coupled with increased bank deposits and lackluster stock market performance, led
to significant participation in GoP ljarah securities, as banks could better deploy excess liquidity at better
rates compared to available money market rates. The corporate sector continued to struggle in raising
funds through long tenor Sukuks, but there was an increase in short tenor Sukuks, particularly in the
Energy sector, which were heavily subscribed to by Asset Management Companies and other financial
institutions.
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Equity Review

The fiscal year began with the KMI-30 Index at 68,766.37 points on June 30, 2022. Over the year, the
market experienced fluctuations and volatility. Despite challenges from internal and external factors, the
fiscal year ended positively, with the index reaching 70,748.13 points on June 27, 2023 —an increase of
2.88%. Throughout the fiscal year, from June 2022 to June 2023, Pakistan's equity market underwent
significant shifts. The KMI-30 Index transitioned from 68,766.37 to 70,748.13 points, reflecting a change
of 1,981.76 points.

This transformation was influenced by various sectors; the Fertilizer and Technology & Communication
sectors, led by Engro Corporation Ltd and Systems Ltd, experienced index point gains. However, sectors
like Chemicals and Pharmaceuticals, represented by companies such as Engro Polymer & Chemicals Ltd
and The Searle Company Ltd, faced challenges resulting in negative index points. This dynamic interplay
highlights the equity market's adaptability to diverse economic factors. The equity market navigated
heightened volatility influenced by external elements and macroeconomic indicators that affected
investor sentiment and overall market dynamics. Throughout the fiscal year, challenges resonated
through the equity market, including external pressures, IMF program delays, an expanding fiscal deficit,
and inflationary pressures, creating a cautious atmosphere for investors. The policy rate surged by 825
basis points, reaching an unprecedented 22.0%, impacting the market's attractiveness. This demanding
economic environment led to a decline in foreign exchange reserves held by the State Bank of Pakistan
(SBP), resulting in the depreciation of the Pakistani Rupee against the US Dollar.

Significant events unfolded during the year, shaping the equity market's trajectory. Government decisions
on power tariffs, IMF agreements, credit rating adjustments, and fluctuations in interest rates played
pivotal roles in influencing market sentiment and conditions. Remittances from overseas Pakistanis
fluctuated, experiencing a 10% YoY decrease by May 2023. Foreign direct investment (FDI) also declined
by 21% over the 11-month period ending in May 2023. Notably, investments from economic powerhouses
like China and Japan remained substantial, particularly in sectors such as Power, Financial Business, and
Oil & Gas exploration. As the fiscal year concluded, the equity market remained attuned to local and global
developments.

Despite challenges, positive signals emerged from international commitments and efforts to revitalize the
IMF program. Looking ahead, the equity market's trajectory depends on evolving factors within the
country and abroad. Government policies, worldwide economic trends, and political stability will
significantly influence market performance. The market's resilience positions it for recovery and growth
under more favorable conditions. In summary, the fiscal year 2022-2023 showcased Pakistan's stock
market's intricate and ever-changing nature. The KMI-30 Index mirrored the market's evolution. Moving
forward, the recent decline in commodity prices offers much-needed relief for the economy. However,
the sustained nature of this trend is crucial for genuine economic improvement.

Mutual Fund Industry Review

The Assets under Management (AUM) of the mutual fund industry increased by 28.9% to PKR 1,619.4
billion in FY23. The percentage of Shariah-compliant funds in the entire mutual fund industry rose to
45.9% in FY23, with Shariah-compliant AUMs growing by 53.9% to PKR 744.3 billion. As of June 30, 2023,
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Pak Qatar Asset Management held a 0.7% market share in the mutual fund industry and a 1.5% market
share in the Shariah-compliant funds category.

The table below illustrates the change in industry AUMs from FY22 to FY23:

Sovereign, Money Market and Income Funds

Shariah Compliant Funds 370 631 T6.04
Conventional Funds 627 723 15.32
Total Funds 097 1374 37.85

Equity Funds (Including Index Tracker Funds

Shanah Compliant Funds 66 44 (33.71)
Conventional Funds 121 86 (28.31)
Total Funds 187 130 {30.35)
Capital Protected. balanced. and asset allocation Funds

Shanah Complhant Funds 20 13 (22.85)
Conventional Funds 10 43 38321
Total Funds 30 64 112.51

Commodiiv Funds

Shariah Compliant Funds 0.6 1.3 124 33
Conventional Funds NA NA NA
Total Funds 0.6 1 124.33

Yoluntary Pension Funds

Shariah Compliant Funds 27 32 1995
Conventional Funds 14 17 233
Total Funds 41 50 21.17
Grand Total 1,255.6 16194 28.08
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Performance Review (Funds)
The table provided below depicts a summary of FY23 performance of fund under our management.

Funds Categor Ne;?s;,:]ets Returns for  Benchmark
8oty s FY23 (%) *  for FY23 (%)
millions
Equity Fund Pak-Qatar Islamic Stock Fund 542 0.42% 5.75%
Pak-Qatar Asan Munafa Plan 204 15.92% 6.23%
Money Market
Fund Pak-Qatar Cash Plan 2,866 17.07% 6.23%
Pak-Qatar Daily Dividend Plan 2,159 17.59% 6.23%
Pak-Qatar Khalis Bachat Plan 313 15.79% 6.06%
Income Fund Pak-Qatar Income Plan 4,764 17.29% 6.06%
Pak-Qatar Monthly Income Plan 344 16.97% 6.06%
11,192

As of June 30, 2023, Pak Qatar Asset Management, have crossed PKR 11.19 billion assets under management.

* For Equity Fund, the stated returns are absolute, while returns for Money Market Funds and Income Funds are
annualized.

10 Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company Limited
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Performance Review (Funds/Plans)
Pak-Qatar Islamic Stock Fund:

With a net asset size of Rs. 542 million, the Pak-Qatar Islamic Stock Fund demonstrated modest
performance in the fiscal year 2023, recording a return of 0.42% compared to the benchmark return of
5.75%.

Pak-Qatar Islamic Cash Fund
Pak-Qatar Asan Munafa Plan:

Boasting a net asset size of Rs. 204 million, the Pak-Qatar Asan Munafa Plan demonstrated exceptional
performance in the fiscal year 2023, delivering an impressive return of 15.92%. This substantial return
significantly outperforms the benchmark return of 6.23%.

Pak-Qatar Cash Plan:

With a net asset size of Rs. 2,866 million, the Pak-Qatar Cash Plan exhibited strong performance in the
fiscal year 2023, with a return of 17.07%. This robust performance surpasses the benchmark return of
6.23%.

Pak-Qatar Daily Dividend Plan:

Managing a net asset size of Rs. 2,159 million, the Pak-Qatar Daily Dividend Plan showcased impressive
performance in the fiscal year 2023, delivering a notable return of 17.59%. This substantial return
significantly exceeds the benchmark return of 6.23%.

Pak-Qatar Islamic Income Fund
Pak-Qatar Khalis Bachat Plan:

With a net asset size of Rs. 313 million, the Pak-Qatar Khalis Bachat Plan generated significant returns of
15.79% in the fiscal year 2023, outperforming the benchmark return of 6.06%.

Pak-Qatar Income Plan:

Managing a net asset size of Rs. 4,764 million, the Pak-Qatar Income Plan displayed impressive
performance in the fiscal year 2023, generating a return of 17.29%. This notable return far surpasses the
benchmark return of 6.06%.

Pak-Qatar Monthly Income Plan:

With a net asset size of Rs. 344 million, the Pak-Qatar Monthly Income Plan delivered solid returns of
16.97% in the fiscal year 2023, exceeding the benchmark return of 6.06%.
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Auditors

S. No | Name of Funds

Name of Auditors as of June
30, 2023

Status of appointment for the year
ending June 30, 2024

1 Pak-Qatar Islamic
Stock Fund (PQISF)

M/s. Yousuf Adil, Chartered
Accountants.

M/s. Yousuf Adil, Chartered Accountants,
have been recommended by the Board
of Audit Committee to be the Auditors of
PQISF.

2 Pak-Qatar Islamic
Cash Fund (PQICF)

M/s. Yousuf Adil, Chartered
Accountants.

M/s. Yousuf Adil, Chartered Accountants,
have been recommended by the Board
of Audit Committee to be the Auditors of
PQICF.

3 Pak-Qatar Islamic
Income Fund (PQIIF)

M/s. Yousuf Adil, Chartered
Accountants.

M/s. Yousuf Adil, Chartered Accountants,
have been recommended by the Board
of Audit Committee to be the Auditors of
PQIIF.

Board Meetings

Details of Board Meetings and attendance therein is given in the notes to the financial statements

of the funds.
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FUND’S INFORMATION

Management Company: Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company Limited
G-8/9, Ground Floor, Business Arcade, Block-6
P.E.C.H.S, Shahrah-e-Faisal Karachi.
UAN: (021) 111-PQAMCL (772625)
Website: www.pgamcl.com

Board of Directors Mr. Said Gul Chairman
of the Management Mr. Muhammad Owais Ansari Non-Executive Director
Company: Mr. Syed Asad Ali Shah lJilani Non-Executive Director
Mr. Muhammad Kamran Saleem Non-Executive Director
Mrs. Sameera Said Non-Executive Director
Board Audit Committee: Mr. Syed Asad Ali Shah Jilani Chairman
Mr. Muhammad Owais Ansari Member
Mr. Muhammad Kamran Saleem Member
Board Human Resource and  Mr. Syed Asad Ali Shah Jilani Chairman
Remuneration Committee: Mr. Said Gul Member
Mr. Muhammad Kamran Saleem Member
Mr. Farhan Shaukat Member
Board Risk Management Mr. Muhammad Owais Ansari Chairman
Committee: Mr. Muhammad Kamran Saleem Member
Mrs. Sameera Said Member
Chief Executive Officer of: Mr. Farhan Shaukat

The Management Company

Chief Financial Officer &: Mr. Umair Karim
Company Secretary

Chief Internal Auditor: Mr. Tahir Lateef

Trustee: Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
CDC — House, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi.

Bankers to the Fund: Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited
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Auditors: Yousuf Adil
Chartered Accountants
Cavish Court, KCHSU,
Shahrah-e-Faisal Karachi

Legal Adviser: AHM & Co
415, Eden Heights,
Jail Road,
Lahore, Pakistan

Shariah Adviser: Mufti. Muhammad Shakir Siddiqui

Transfer Agent: ITMinds Limited
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Fund Manager Report
Annual Report 2023

PAK QATAR ISLAMIC STOCK FUND

Description of the Collective Investment Scheme category and type
Shariah Compliant Islamic - Equity Scheme / Open end

Statement of Collective Investment Scheme’s investment objective
The investment objective is to generate long term capital growth through actively managed
portfolio in accordance with Shariah Compliant Islamic Equity Category.

Explanation as to whether the Collective Investment Scheme has achieved its stated objective
The collective investment scheme achieved its stated objective.

Statement of benchmark(s) relevant to the Collective Investment Scheme

KMI30 Index

Comparison of the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance during the period compared

with the said benchmarks

Sep-22 Oct22 Nov-22 Dec22 Jan23 Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr23 May-23 Jun-23 | FY23
PQISF 0.39% 116%  210% -4.04% 1.11% -0.96% 1.59% 2.74% -2.73% -0.72% [ 0.42%
Benchmark| 0.84% 2.74% 3.55% -4.86% 1.70% -0.98% 0.84% 4.35% -1.40% -0.83% | 5.75%
Diff. -045% -1.58% -1.45% 0.82% -0.59% 0.02% 0.75% -1.61% -1.33% 0.11% | -5.33%

Description of the strategies and policies employed during the period under review in relation
to the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance
Over the course of the year, the fund took a tactical approach by favoring undervalued defensive
positions, while maintaining minimal involvement in cyclical sectors due to the challenging

macroeconomic environment.

Disclosure of the Collective Investment Scheme’s asset allocation as at the date of the report
and particulars of significant changes in asset allocation since the last report (if applicable)

Asset Allocation

Jun-23 Jun-22

Equity 92% 0%
Cash 7% 0%
Other Receivables 1% 0%

100% 0%

Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company Limited
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> Analysis of the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance

PQISF Benchmark
Standard Deviation 0.87% 0.93%
Expense Ratio YTD 3.70%

> Based on changes in total NAV and NAV per unit since the last review period or since

commencement (in the case of newly established Collective Investment Scheme)

Net Assets
Excluding PQAMC | NAV per Unit (PKR)
FoFs (PKR mn)

30-Jun-23 542.04 99.98

30-Sep-22 202.95 100.39

Disclosure of the markets that the Collective Investment Scheme has invested in:

The fund invests in Shariah-compliant equity securities listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange
(PSX)

Disclosure on distribution (if any), comprising: -

Since its inception, the Pak Qatar Islamic Stock Fund has periodically distributed payouts to its
unit holders. On October 6, 2022, the fund distributed a payout of 0.2350 per unit to its investors.
This distribution reflected the profits or returns generated by the fund's investments up to that
date. Furthermore, on June 28, 2023, the fund again made a payout of 0.2129 per unit to its
investors

Description and explanation of any significant changes in the state of a-airs of the Collective
Investment Scheme during the period and up till the date of the manager’s report, not
otherwise disclosed in the financial statements

There were no significant changes in the state of affairs during the year under review.

Breakdown of unit holdings by size

Fund Range Count
0.10 9,999.00 1.00
10,000.00 49,999.00 5.00
. 50,000.00 99,999.00 -
Pak Qatar Islamic Stock Fund
100,000.00 499,999.00 1.00
500,000.00 Above 7.00
Total 14.00
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Disclosure on unit split (if any), comprising: -

The Fund has not carried out any unit split exercise during the year

Disclosure of circumstances that materially affect any interests of the unit holders

Investment is subject to market risk.

Disclosure if the Asset Management Company or its delegate, if any, receives any soft
commission (i.e., goods and services) from its broker(s) or dealer(s) by virtue of transactions
conducted by the Collective Investment Scheme, disclosure of the following: -

The Management Company and / or any of its delegates have not received any soft commission
from its brokers / dealers by virtue of transactions conducted by the Fund.

Performance Table

NET ASSETS - RUPEES IN "000"

NET INCOME / (LOSS) - RUPESS IN "000"
TOTAL RETURN OF THE FUND

NAV PER UNIT

HIGHEST OFFER PRICE PER UNIT
LOWEST OFFER PRICE PER UNIT
YEAR-END OFFER PRICE PER UNIT
HIGHEST REPURCHASE PRICE PER UNIT
LOWEST REPURCHASE PRICE PER UNIT
YEAR-END REPURCHASE PRICE PER UNIT
INTERIM DISTRIBUTION

FINAL DISTRIBUTION

TOTAL DISTRIBUTION AS % OF PAR VALUE

Notes

Pak Qatar Islamic Fund was launched on September 22, 2022

Disclaimer

June 30 2023
542,039
2,184
0.42%
99.98
109.86
97.06
103.37
106.25
93.88
99.98
0.24
0.21
0.45

Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and that unit prices and
investment returns may go down, as well as up.

Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company Limited
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Report of the Shari'ah Advisor — Pak Qatar Islamic Stock Fund
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In the capacity of Shari'ah Advisor, | have prescribed criteria and procedure to be followed in
ensuring Shari'ah compliance in every investment of Pak Qatar Islamic Stock Fund and |
certify that:

I) I have reviewed and approved the modes of investments of Pak Qatar Islamic Stock
Fund in light of the Shari'ah guidelines.

2) All the provisions of the fund and investments made on account of Pak Qatar Islamic
Stock Fund are Shari'ah compliant and in accordance with the defined criteria.

3) On the basis of information provided by the management, all the operation of the Pak
Qatar Islamic Stock Fund for the year ended June 30, 2023 have been in compliance
with Shari’ah principles.

S5

Mufti Muhafmad Shakir Siddiqui
Shariah Advisor
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CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY
OF PAKISTAN LIMITED

Head Office:

CDC House, 99-8, Block ‘B’
S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahra-e-Faisal
Karachi - 74400, Pakistan.
Tel:(92-21) 111-111-500

Fax: (92-21) 34326021 - 23

URL: www.cdcpakistan.com

Email: info@cdcpak.com

TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

PAK-QATAR ISLAMIC STOCK FUND (PQISF)

Report of the Trustee pursuant to Regulation 41(h) and clause 8 of Schedule V of
the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008

We Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of Pak-Qatar
Islamic Stock Fund (the Fund) are of the opinion that Pak-Qatar Asset Management
Company Limited being the Management Company of the Fund has in all material
respects managed the Fund from September 21, 2022 to June 30, 2023 in accordance
with the provisions of the following:

(1) Limitations imposed on the investment powers of the Management Company
under the constitutive documents of the Fund;

(1) The pricing, issuance and redemption of units are carried out in accordance with
the requirements of the constitutive documents of the Fund;

(iii)  The management fee, fee payable to Commission and other expenses paid from
the Fund during the period are in accordance with the applicable regulatory
framework; and

(iv)  The Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules,
2003, the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations,
2008 and the constitutive documents of the Fund.

\\M o

Badiuddin Akber
Chief Executive Officer
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Karachi, September 27, 2023

DEPOSITO
(¢{0) Y
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1 YOUSUF ADIL Yousuf Adil

Chartered Accountants

Cavish Court, A-35, Block 7 & 8
KCHSU, Shahrah-e-Faisal
Karachi-75350

Pakistan

Tel: +92 (0) 21 3454 6494-7
Fax: +92(0) 21-3454 1314
www.yousufadil.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To The Unit Holders of Pak Qatar Islamic Stock Fund

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Pak Qatar Islamic Stock Fund (the Fund), which comprise the statement of
assets and liabilities as at June 30, 2023, and the income statement, statement of comprehensive income, statement of
movement in unit holders' fund and statement of cash flows for the period from September 21, 2022 to June 30, 2023
(the period) and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Fund as at
June 30, 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the period then ended in accordance with
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Fund and Pak Qatar Asset Management Company Limited
(Management Company) in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Pakistan, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management Company is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management Company and Board of Directors of the Management Company for the Financial
Statements

Management Company is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and for such internal control as the Management
Company determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Management Company is responsible for assessing the Fund's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless Management Company either intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Independent Correspondent Firm to
\E Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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Chartered Accountants

Board of Directors of the Management Company are responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Management Company's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Management Company.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of Management Company's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. Flowever, future events or conditions may cause the Fund
to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with Board of Directors of the Management Company regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that

we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Non-Banking

Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 and Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified

Entities Regulations, 2008.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Flena Sadiq.

iccountants
Place: Karachi

Date: August 25, 2023
UDIN: AR202310057quzbpAg7k

Independent Correspondent Firm to
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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PAK QATAR ISLAMIC STOCK FUND
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AS AT JUNE 30, 2023

June 30,
2023

Note  -———-- (Rupees) ----—--
Assets
Bank balances 4 56,527,833
Investments 5 497,517,995
Profit receivable 575,350
Deposits and other receivables 6 1,109,738
Receivable against sale of investments 51,414,891
Preliminary expenses and floatation cost 7 708,251
Total Assets 607,854,058
Liabilities
Payable to Management Company 8 1,942,181
Payable to Trustee 9 87,639
Payable to the Commission 10 64,415
Accrued and other liabilities 11 63,720,954
Total Liabilities 65,815,189
Net Assets 542,038,869
UNIT HOLDERS' FUND (as per statement of 542,038,859

movement in unit holders' Fund)

---(Number of units)---

Number Of Units In Issue 5,421,403

----- (Rupees) -----
N.et Assets Value Per Unit 99.9813
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 12

The annexed notes from 1 to 25 form an integral part of these financial statements.

‘& For Pak Qatar Asset Management Company Limited
(Management Company)

> s e

Chief utive Officer nanclal Officer \ DlrectQ ¥
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PAK QATAR ISLAMIC STOCK FUND
INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD FROM SEPTEMBER 21, 2022 TO JUNE 30, 2023
From September

21, 2022 to
June 30, 2023
Note  ~=----- (Rupees) ------
INCOME
Profit on bank savings account 4.1 5,697,620
Dividend income 25,446,844
Capital gain on sale of investments - net 7,355,352
Net unrealised diminution on remeasurement
of investments classified 'at fair value through profit or loss' 52 (20,837,350)
Total Income 17,662,466
EXPENSES
Remuneration of Management Company 8.1 6,441,503
Sindh sales tax on Management Company remuneration 8.2 837,395
Allocated expenses by the Management Company 8.3 508,600
Remuneration of Trustee 8.1 644,150
Sindh sales tax on Trustee remuneration 9.2 83,740
Annual fee of the Commission 10.1 64,415
Shariah advisory fee 400,000
Advertisement and marketing expense 1,421,439
Auditor's remuneration 13 248,600
Securities transaction cost 4,566,135
LLegal and professional charges 132,870
Amortisation of preliminary expenses and floatation cost 7 - 129,441
Total expenses 15,478,288
Net income for the period before taxation 2,184,178
Taxation 15 2
Net income for the period after taxation : 2,184,178
Allocation of net income for the period:
Net income for the period after taxation 2,184,178
Income already paid on units redeemed (7,207)
2,176,971
Accounting income available for distribution:
Relating to capital gains / i
Excluding capital gains 2,176,971
2,176,971

The annexed notes from 1 to 25 form an integral part of these financial statements.
¢ For Pak Qatar Asset Management Company Limited
(Management Company)

\\,m\"M/ O@" o \W

Chief Ex&cutive Dfficer inancial Officer DIW
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PAK QATAR ISLAMIC STOCK FUND
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD FROM SEPTEMBER 21, 2022 TO JUNE 30, 2023

From September

21,2022 to
June 30, 2023
w-waeem (RUpEES) e
Net income for the period after taxation 2,184,178
Other comprehensive income for the period -
2,184,178

Total comprehensive income for the period

The annexed notes from 1 to 25 form an integral part of these financial statements.

% For Pak Qatar Asset Management Company Limited
(Management Company)

\Qt,ﬂ\fp‘/ () o™
Chit;?é)‘acutive Officer C(I'yiﬂnahcialofﬂcer Dlrﬂor 5
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PAK QATAR ISLAMIC STOCK FUND
STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN UNITHOLDERS’ FUND
FOR THE PERIOD FROM SEPTEMBER 21, 2022 TO JUNE 30, 2023

From September 21, 2022 to
June 30, 2023
Accumulated

Capital value Profit Total
(Rupees)
Net assets at beginning of the period - - :
Issuance of 8,207,621 units
- Capital value (at Ex-net asset value per unit at issue) 820,762,200 - 820,762,200
- Element of income 6,742,457 - 6,742,457
Total proceeds on issuance of units 827,504,657 - 827,504,657
Redemption of 2,786,218 units
- Capital value (al Ex-net asset value per unit at issue) (278,621,800) - (278,621,800)
- Element of income (7,393,759) (7,207) (7,400,966)
Total paynjeﬁts on redemption of units (286,015,559) (7,207) (286,022,766)
Total comprehensive income for the period - 2,184,178 2184,178
Distributions during the year (64,806) (1,562,394) (1,627,200)
Net assets at end of the period 541,424,292 614,577 542,038,869
Undistributed Income brought forward
- Realised =
- Unrealised =
Accounting Income available for distribution
- Relating to capital gains -
- Excluding capital gains 2,176,971
2,176,971
Distributions during the year ) (1,562,394)
614,577
Undistributed Income carried forward
- Realised income 21,451,927
- Unrealised loss (20,837,350)
614,577
--- (Rupees) ---
Net assets value per unit at beginning of the period &
Net assets value per unit at end of the period 99,9813 |

The annexed notes from 1 to 25 form an integral part of these financial statements.

o

For Pak Qatar Asset Management Company Limited
(Management Company)

\ A ) o | A
Chi%cutlve Officer W:\ancial Officer Direc‘{)
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PAK QATAR ISLAMIC STOCK FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE PERIOD FROM SEPTEMBER 21, 2022 TO JUNE 30, 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit for the period before taxation

Adjustments for:

Profit on bank deposits

Dividend income

Net unrealised diminution on remeasurement of
investments 'at fair value through profit or loss'

Amortisation of preliminary expenses and floatation cost

(Increase) in assets

Investments .
Receivable against sale of investments
Preliminary expenses and floatation cost
Deposits and other receivables

Increase in liabilities

Payable to Management Company
Payable to the Trustee

Payable to the Commission

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Profit received on deposits
Dividend received

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Amount received from issuance of units
Amount paid against redemption of units
Distribution during the year

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

The annexed notes from 1 to 25 form an integral part of these financial statements.

%

(M

\\m\/’} ;

gement Company)

Sl

ChiaPE;\ccutive Officer cwnéncial Officer

From September
21, 2022 to
June 30, 2023

Note  .------- (Rupees) -—-----

2,184,178

(5,697,620)
(25,446,844)

20,837,350

129,441
(7,993,495)

(518,355,345)
(51,414,891)
(837,692)
(1,109,738)
(571,717,666)

1,942,181
87,639
64,415

63,720,954
65,815,189

5,122,270
25,446,844
30,569,114

(483,326,858)

827,504,657
(286,022,766)
(1,627,200)
539,854,691
56,527,833
/ .
4 / 56,527,833

For Pak Qatar Asset Management Company Limited

‘Directdr

Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company Limited
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PAK QATAR ISLAMIC STOCK FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD FROM SEPTEMBER 21, 2022 TO JUNE 30, 2023

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6
1.7

1.8

2.1

%

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Pak Qatar Islamic Stock Fund (the "Fund") is an open-ended Shariah compliant scheme constituted under a Trust Deed
entered into on June 28, 2022 between Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company Limited (PQAMCL) as the Management
Company and the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) as the Trustee under the Sindh Trusts
(Amendment) Act, 2021. The Fund was authorised by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (the
commission) as a unit trust scheme on July, 07 2022, The initial public offering (IPO) of the Fund was made on Initial
offering period from September 21, 2022 to September 22, 2022 (both days inclusive), and the Fund commenced
operation from September 21, 2022. In accordance with the Trust Deed, the first accounting period of the Fund
commenced on the date on which the Fund's property was first transferred to the trustee i.e., period commencing on
September 21, 2022 and ending on June 30, 2023 of the succeeding calendar year.

The Management Company of the Fund is registered as Non Banking Finance Company (NBFC) under NBFC Rules,
2003 and has obtained the requisite license from the commission to undertake Asset Management Services. The
registered office of the Management Company is situated at Suite # G-8/9, Business Arcade, Block 6, Pakistan Employees
Co-Operative Housing Society (PECHS), Karachi, in the province of Sindh.

The Fund is an open-ended Shariah Compliant Fund and offers units for public subscription on a continuous basis. The
units are transferable and can also be redeemed by surrendering to the fund.

According to the Trust Deed, the principal activity of the Fund is to provide capital appreciation to investors schemes by
investing in Shariah Compliant equity securities. The Fund is categorised as an open end Shariah Compliant (Islamic)
Equity Scheme in accordance with Circular 7 of 2009, issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP). Mufti Muhammad Shakir Siddigui acts as its Shariah Advisor to ensure that the activities of the Fund are in
compliance with the principles of Shariah.

These financial statements have been prepared from date of launch of the fund. i.e from September 21, 2022 to June 30,
2023 (the period), therefore these are the first set of financial information of the fund, hence there are no corresponding
numbers in these financial statements.

The investment objective is to generate long term capital growth through actively managed portfolio in accordance with
Shahriah Compliant slamic Equity Category.

The Fund's credit rating is in process by Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (F’ACRA} hence the fund is not rated as at period
end June 30, 2023.

The title to the assets of the Fund is held in the name of the Trustee of the Fund. i.e. CDC.
BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These_ﬂnanciai statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIl A of the repealed Companies
Ordinance 1984; and

- The NBFC rules, the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC
Regulations) and requirement of the Trust Deed.

Annual Report 2023
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Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIl A of the repealed Companies
Ordinance 1884, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and requirements of the Trust Deed differ from the IFRS
Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIl A of the repealed Companies
Ordinance 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulation and requirements of the Trust Deed have been followed.

2.2 New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the period ended June 30,
2023

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the period ended June 30, 2023. These

standards, amendments and interpretations are either nol relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to
have significant impact on the Company's financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Amendments to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' - Reference to the conceptual framework
Amendments to IAS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment' - Proceeds before intended use

- Amendments to IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets' - Onerous Contracts — cost of
fulfilling a contract

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle (related to IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and IAS 41)

2:3 New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS-interpretatians that are not yet effective
Effective from
accounting period
beginning on or after
- Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Disclosure of accounting January 01, 2023
policies

Amendments to |AS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors' - Definition of accounting estimates January 01, 2023

Amendments to 'IAS 12 Income Taxes' - deferred tax related to assets and liabilities January 01, 2023
arising from a single transaction

- Amendments to IAS 12 Income taxes' - International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model . January 01, 2023
Rules .
- Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Classification of liabilities January 01, 2024

as current or non-current

- Amendments to IFRS 16 ' Leases' -Clarification on how seller-lessee subsequently January 01, 2024
measures sale and leaseback transactions

- Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' and 'IFRS 7 'Financial instruments January 01, 2024
disclosures' - Supplier Finance Arrangements

Amendments to IFRS 10 and 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor Deferred indefinitely
and its Associate or Joint Venture
Other than the aforesaid amendments, |ASB has also issued the following standards which have not been adopted locally

by the Commission:

IFRS 1 - First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts

30 Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company Limited
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan requires the management to make estimates, judgements and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, income and expenses. It also requires the management to exercise judgment in the application of its
accounting policies. The estimates, judgements and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors thal are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. The areas involving a degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
estimates and assumptions are significant to the financial statements are documented in the following accounting policies,

notes and relate primarily to:

The areas involving a degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where estimates and assumptions are significant to the
financial statements are as follows:

Note
- Classification and valuation of financial assets 311
- Impairment of financial assets 31.1.3
- Taxation 34
- Classification and valuation of financial liabilities 31.21

The revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that year, ar in the year of revision and future years if the revision affects both current and future years.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for investments which are
stated at fair value.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in these financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Fund operates. These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Fund's functional
and presentation currency. Amounts presented in the financial statements have been round off to the nearest thousand
rupees, unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting polices set out below have been applied consistently to periods presented in these financial statements.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Fund’s statement of assets and
liabilities when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured al fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the Income statement.

Financial assets
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis, Regular

way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Classification and measurement of financial assets

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the entity's business model for managing them.
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All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets. For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are

classified in following categories:

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss (equity instruments)
Equity investments which the Fund had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through other comprehensive

income are classified as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of assets and liabilities at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in the Income statement.

Dividends on equity investments are recognised as income in the Income statement when the right to receive is
established.

3.1.1.2 Fair value measurement principles
The fair value of financial instruments is determined as follows:
Basis of valuation of equity instruments:

The fair value of equity instruments is determined by using closing rate of securities at day end available on the Pakistan
Stock Exchange's website. ;!

3.1.1.3 Impairment of financial assets

The Fund assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that the Fund's financial assets er a group
of financial assets are impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated. An
impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

For financial assets other than debt securities measured at amortised cost, IFRS 9 requires recognition of impairment
based on expected credit loss (ECL) model. Under IFRS 9, the Fund is required to measure loss allowance equal to an
amount equal to lifetime ECL or 12 months ECL based on credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when
estimating ECLs, the Fund considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue

cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Fund's historical
experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

However, majority of the assets of the Fund exposed to credit risk pertains to counter parties which have high credit rating
or where credit risk has not been increased since initial recognition. Therefore, management believes thal the impact of
ECL would be very minimal and hence, the same has not been accounted for in these financial statements.

3.1.1.4 Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Fund's statement of assets and liabilities) when:

- the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

- the Fund has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset;

3.1.2 Financial liabilities
3.1.2.1 Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

All financial liabllities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, unless they are required to be measured at fair value through profit or
loss (such as instruments held for trading or derivatives) or the Fund has opted to measure them at fair value through
profit or loss.
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Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms .of. an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognlltlon gf the ariginal
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Income

statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of assets and liabilities if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of bank balances.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
eslimate of the amount of obligation can be made. Provisions are regularly reviewed and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate.

Taxation

The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under Clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001, subject to the condition that not less than 90% of its accounting income for the period, as reduced by
capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, is distributed to the unit holders as cash dividend.

The Fund is also exempt from the provisions of Section 113 (minimum tax) and Section 113C (Alternative Corporate Tax)
under clause 11A of Part |V of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Distribution and appropriations

Dividend distributions and appropriations are recorded in the period in which these arg approved by the Board of Directors
(the Board) of the Management Company. Based on Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan's (MUFAP) guidelines duly
consented by the Commission, distribution for the year also includes portion of income already paid on units redeemed
during the year.

Regulation 63 of the NBFC Regulations requires the Fund to distribute 90% of the net accounting income other than
capital gains to the unit holders.

Distributions declared subsequent to the year end / reporting date are considered as non-adjusting events and are
recognised in the financial statements of the period in which such distributions are declared and approved by the Board of
the Management Company.

Issue and redemption of units

Units issued are recorded at the offer price, determined by the Management Company for the applications received by the
distributors during business hours on that date. The offer price represents the net asset value per unit as of the close of
the business day plus the allowable sales load and any provision for duties and charges, if applicable. The sales load is
payable to investment facilitators, distributors and the Management Company.

Unitg redeemed are recorded at the redemption price, applicable ta units for which the distributors receive redemption
applications during business hours of that day. The redemption price represents the net asset value per unit as of the
close of the business day less any back-end load, any duties, taxes, and charges on redemption, if applicable.
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Element of income represents the difference between net assets value per unit on the issuance. or redemption date, as the
case may be, and the net assets value per unit at the beginning of the relevant accounting period. Further, the element of
income is a transaction of capital nature and the receipt and payment of element of income is taken to unit holders' fund.
However, to maintain the same ex-dividend net asset value of all units outstanding on the accounting date, net element of
income contributed on issue of units lying in unit holders fund is refunded on units in the same proportion as dividend
bears to accounting income available for distribution. :

3.7 Net asset value per unit

The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit, as disclosed in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, is calculated by dividing the
nel assets of the Fund by the number of units in issue at the year end.

3.8 Revenue recognition
s Gain or loss on sale of investment is accounted for in the income statement in the period in which it arises.

- Unrealised appreciation / diminution arising on revaluation of investments classified as 'at fair value through profit or
loss' is included in the Income statement in the period in which it arises.

- Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.
- Profit on bank balances is recognised on a time proportionate basis using bank's approved rates.

3.9 Expenses

All expenses chargeable to the Fund including remuneration of the Management Company and Trustee and annual fee of
the Commission are recognised in the Income statement on an accrual basis.

3.10 Earnings per unit

Earnings per unit (EPU) has not been disclosed as in the opinion of the management, determination of weighted average
units for calculating EPU is not practicable.

June 30,
2023

4. BANK BALANCES Note (Rupees)

Local currency:

Savings accounts 4.1 ; 56,527,833
4.1 Mark-up rates on these accounts range between 14% to 19.25% per annum,
5. INVESTMENTS

At fair value through profit or loss

Listed equity securities 8.1 497,517,995

34 Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company Limited



=

K

PAK-QATAR

ASSET MANAGEMENT

(zge'sas L) v8L'869'9z  L95'€87'8T
900 99’ 18’ (¥re'ave) L6¥'000'6 GEL'8¥Z'6 L08'G8L  6L0'F09 E 988682 e oL Py Sauisnpu| (33} puy woJ] leybniy
¥0°0 FrAl €€l (bzr'ele) SYE'ELY'D 0.4'CEB'9 S6Z'EIL  lSB'PiE & £ST'8LE . oL paliWI] S|991S [eUOHELIBIL|
100 iz 8EL (665'061) 569'228'9 $62'€80°2 BEQ'ER 002'82e o 8e0'2ZE , Ok PANLLIT SBISNPU] [BUCHEUIBIU|
80°0 8470 590 (s11'g28) 269'802't 89.'v€0'S 6¥0'vlz  8Li0'LZE - 2L 665 - oL pajwi s|8alg I3y
Bunaouibugy
(Laz'0L9's) 19g'EZ0'eEL  ZZL'¥6I'8EL
2070 a0'9 0g's (810's8¢'2) +19'828'2e  TEQ'ELE'SE  00L'SSS  PBS'SEQ'L = ¥69'052'C - oL payW|] Wnejosad UBISHEd
€070 89°G g8L'9 (650'201"L) £G6'69L'08  9L0'ZZ8'LE  985'9L ovg'szl & azr'z0z c ] PalWI SPIRYIO UEISHEd
1070 6E°L 508 (z69'602°L) 0£2'9E0'0r  ZEe'Sve'ly  S8T'ElS  O0EL'Z69'L 4 S0l = (1] pajwy Auedwog wewdojeaaq s29) 3 110
Lo0 'S 168G (z66'28) 09S5'88E€'6Z  265'Z92'0E  £O¥'6L 896'82 = LIS - oL payw Avedwo) wnajonad uepy
sajuedwo) uonelojdxg ses g |10
(ss¥'8LL°Z) €18'618°Z¢  B9Z'8E6'vE
v0°0 96'L ELE (6£9'vGY) £18°219'0L  2ZS¥'TLO0'LL  £69'69Z  E8L'EEV 5 G18'Z69 = oL pajwi ssunadid se9 Wayuon INg
#0°0 oL'w gy (218'€99'L) 000'z0Z'2Z  9L8'698'EZ 000002  ££0'0vZ 4 £E0'0FY s oL pajw Auedwon o siejs uelsped
sajuedwosn Bunaylew ses 2 |10
£0°0 v0'S 6¥'S 066889 log'eee’zz  L18'vv¥9'9Z  Op@'eeE  282'29% = 22L'556 = oL pajiw Auedwod Jamod qnH ayL
uonngUIs|g B uojjelauac) Jamod
8¥E'E60'T veZ'LLg'L8  9vs'Lil'sL
#0'0 or'L £S'L 6ES'¥BE ZLO'VES'L ££6'602'L 199'28 0p9'e5L > LOE'vP8 & oL PalILIN WSWSY) 199UoId
€00 08l Z0¢ 59e'vee LEL'890'0L  ZLE'vYE'B B0¥'GGE  £E.'95Y'L = Zri'elg'y ~ 0L paywi fioped Juswe) jea sidew
200 pLL 842 LES'L50'L Z69'289'8€  LOL'LEY'/E  2B0'PL 008'¥zL : Z68'861 = oL pajiwi uawae) AanT
00 122 Lw'e 8G0'0FE £er'Le6'LL  G9E'LY9'LL  96G'tse  9L¥'ELs 5 ZE0'Z01'L = ok pajwi Avedwo) uewsa) ueyy 'o'q
90°0 os'e Zie 56L'26 OLE'$PS'EL  GIG'LSP'EL  Z09'ZLL  GOB'OES = ZLy'ers 2 oL pajwn Auedwoy Juswa) jeiayn
juawan
¥0°0 o'l 66°L (e85'151) ¥BE‘Z06'L 196'£50'8 00Z'6€L 8107208 2 822 Lbb = oL payILLIT SIIN JBUSIN
gjisodwos ajixa )
(1rs'162's) £45'2£0'ss  vLl'62E'0n
zZ0'0 €49 EE°L (ges'zaL'z) L6F'09%'9e  BLO'ESZ'BE  Ebl'e2F  L02'S2E . 0SE'L¥L # 04 pejw jueg uzzaayy
900 EV'E £L€ (eL0'66+'2) ZB0'ZL5'8L  G60'9/0'LZ  B95'026  005'80 B 690'629'L - oL payw yueg |esked
syueg
(payeys asimasyjo ssajun)
(%) e el - (sa1eys }0 JeqUINp) ——-mr—mmre v (seadny) saseys Kieugpio pied Ajjn4
hm:mnEou {uoynuunp) anjea anjea d
aysanul i ! st
o3 jo [Eded ....MMMWM M.HM Mo EJM”_MHM\..E | uopeisalddy pE TN Buifuien cz0z 2 _”hm“m_.._n._ mh m_”E:u cotied _ ki
dn pied |ejo1 s=anjaa  |eBeuscued se ‘ng sunr %wmcmﬂﬂw paal@dal ) buunp h_wwmwm m__.< 12d anjea Auedwoo asysaau) ay) jo awey
30 abejuaosad R anjeA jayIEN . e sy I ploS anssi ybu paseysing are4
£20C '0f auny je se aduejeg

B SE SaIeys Jo
an{ea dn pied

j snuog

sanundas fnba pajsn

35

Annual Report 2023



=

K

PAK-QATAR

ASSET MANAGEMENT

(os¢g'288'02) S66°LLS'L6Y SPE'SSE'SLS £Z0Z ‘0¢ sunp je se |ejoL
" . - - - - - 0058 - 005's8 . (o] pajwi] uoneiodio) sajndse poomeq
"09 sapunJdag/sauedwo) "AUIpiuRg ‘AU
600 STL g9t (252'9LL) 969'Z9L's £56885'L 65Z'4¥.  000'86Z'L = 652'SP0'E - o] 8 paywy uoipia|d yed
Spo0g [EIII8]T B S9|qED
zZe'0 S6'0 ¥O'L (esv'zLL) 058'6¥L'S 60£°2ZE'S 000°LL8  00S'S9¥'L = 00s'LL2'e = al pouwr] speod
SaLI0S5800Y g SHEJ 3|Iqowojny
Z00 6.0 g8'0 £9v'szZ 19129z 869'950'y L69'ZLZ  000'9€9 - L69'806 - 0l papwr spoo4 Ayun
$§]oNpold aleD [BU0SIa g Spood
100 180 SE'0 (582°005) slL9'0vL'Yy Pov'LYE'S ¥0Z'ZLL  92Y'L6 = 0£9'€02 = ol pajwWr slesiwayy g JawA|od oibug
sjeanwsyg
(sLo'est'e) 855'G96'ZL  9.G'ESP'IZ
€00 880 ¥60 (200'08L'2) Lye'189'Y BvE'LY8'9 lge'gzL  009'0EZ  SE¥'L 964'GvE - oL paywr] Auedwo) apess ay |
1Z'0 <] A 192 (LLo'B2E'L) LIT'8LZ'EL  BZZ'O09'¥L  ZIT'EZS  ¥IG'EOL'L = avl'ges'L = ok pajwi] euleyd MO
S|ED[IN3JBULEY
(Lv0'oLz’s) 6vL'0F5'8F  96L°0SL'6Y
100 ge'e gg'e (reg'zLa) 00€'264'8L  ¥EB'¥00'6L  000'0L 985'L8¢2 = 985'LSE = oL paywr] uopelodiog aibug
£0°0 0g's 01’9 (e15'26€) BY8'ZVE'DE  ZOE'SYL'OE  6LL'9E  BES'LES = 952'606 # 0l payw siazyie4 oibug
Jazjpag
Z0'0 £8°0 06'0 9v9'sy 0Z5'var'y vI8'VPEY'Y 6ZL'92 065’60} = 6LL'GEL - oL pajwWI] Auauyay Yooy |
i Kaupyey
(osg'zoe's) 0EL'868'Z¢  SL5°09Z'9¢
00 EL'Y gL'g (9z1's0L'2) 88/'LE9'GZ  ¥96'98L'4Z  009'E9 g0z'elz 5 908'9L2 A ol penwr swaisks
0°0 peL 9L {oL2'452'L) Zve'9vZ’L 255'605'e ObS'vaL  2BP'S0Z O¥E'YL £80'€5E - oL PSlILUIT UO3oUBAY
suoneslunwwo g Abojouysa]
Loo 2L L9y 9.8'z¢ey 988°220'8 020'565°'L 895'0Z 158'ee PLLOL SOL'v¥ - oL pajwi SIoSRl 1Bl
: l8|quiassy ajiqowoiny
(paie3s asimiaujo ssajun)
(%) (saadny) e Bl CET L= TR T T (171 1V) R —— {seadny) saseys Lieulpio pied Ajjng
Auedwos ; U
seysaAul . uonnunp anea anjea pousad
au1jo |EndeD mwwmmﬂu«“ﬂmo w«_ﬂa:%hﬂ,nn { uogedaiddy | IaiEw Buihueg £20Z mzﬂcmuﬂn:u sy Bupnp  pouad g aizys
dn pied |30} seenjen |abeussied se ‘gg aunp nmmom.m__u paaiazas  ayj Bupnp h__:.uwm o Jad anjea Aueduioa sajsanul syl Jo auweN
10 abejuadsad et S Sk 1B sy % enss| b paseysing aoe4
e SE Saieys jo e 1 W SZ0Z 'O 8uny{ je se aluejeg I pios / snuog

| 3njen dn pied

Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company Limited

36



Al

3

PAK-QATAR
ASSET MANAGEMENT
June 30,
2023
Note ----(Rupees)----
5.2 Net unrealised diminution on re-measurement of
investments classified as 'at fair value through profit or loss'
Market value of investments 5.1 497,517,995
Carrying value of investments 5.1 (518,355,345)
(20,837,350)
6. DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Security deposit with
- Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 100,000
Other receivable 867,035
Advance tax against bank profits 142,703
1,109,738
F PRELIMINARY EXPENSES AND FLOATATION COST
Preliminary expenses and floatation cost 837,692
Accumulated amortisation
Opening balance =
Amortised during the year 129,441
Closing balance 7.1 129,441
708,251
7.1 Preliminary expenses and floatation costs represent expenditure incurred prior to the commencement of operations of the

Fund. These costs are amortised over a pericd of five years in accordance with clause 15.3.1 set out in the Trust Deed of
the Fund and the requirements set out in Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008.

June 30,
2023
Note ----(Rupees)--—
8. PAYABLE TO MANAGEMENT COMPANY

Management fee 8.1 775,573

Sindh sales tax on management fee 8.2 100,824
Preliminary expenses and floatation charges payable 71 722,021
Allocated expenses payable 8.3 225,303
Advertisement and marketing fee payable 8.4 118,460
1,942,181
8.1 As per regulation 81 of the NBFC Regulations, 2008, the Management Company is entitled to a remuneration equal to an

amount not exceeding the maximum rate of the management fee as disclosed in the Offering Document subject into the
total expense ratio limit. As per Offering Document the Management Company can charge management fee upto 3% of
average annual net assets. The fee is payable monthly in arrears to the Management Company. The Management
Company has charged management fee at the rate of 2% of net assets.

8.2 Sindh Sales Tax on services at the rate of 13% on gross value of management fee is charged under the provisions of
Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011.
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8.3 In accordance with Regulation 60 of the NBFC Regulations, the Management Co_mpany is entitled to cr!arge fees and
expenses related to registrar services, accounting, operation and valuation services, related to Collective Investment
Scheme (CIS). The Management Company has allocated expenses at the rate of 0.10% of the average annual net assets

of the Fund.

8.4 In accordance with Circular 11 dated July 5, 2019 with respect to charging selling and marketing expenses, the
management company, based on its own discretion, has charged selling and marketing expense at'the rate of 0.5% per
annum of the average annual net assets of the Fund during the year ended June 30, 2023, subject to total expense

charged being lower than actual expense incurred.

38

June 30,
2023
Note ---(Rupees)----
9. PAYABLE TO TRUSTEE
Trustee fee 9.1 77,557
Sindh sales tax on Trustee fee 9.2 10,082
87,639
9.1 The Trustee is entitled to monthly remuneration for services rendered to the fund at the flat rate of 0.2% per annum of
average net assets.
9.2 Sindh Sales Tax on services has been charged at 13% on gross value of Trustee fee levied through Sales Tax on Services
Act, 2011.
June 30,
2023
Note ----(Rupees)----
10. PAYABLE TO THE COMMISSION
Annual fee payable 10.1 64,415
10.1 In accordance with the NBFC Regulations, 2008, a collective investment scheme classified as an equity scheme is
required to pay the SECP an amount equal to 0.02% of the average annual net assets of the Fund as annual fee.
June 30,
2023
. --—-(Rupees)----
11. ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABLITIES
Capital gain tax payable 37,304
Auditor's remuneration 159,560
Withholding tax payable 163,068
Charity / donation payable 1,211,753
Payable against purchase of investments 62,149,269
63,720,954
12. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
There were no contingencies and commitments as at June 30, 2023,
13. AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION
Auditor's remuneration 209,259
QOut of pocket 20,926
230,185
Sindh sales tax 18,415
248,600
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14. TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO

The total expense ratio (TER) of the Fund from September 22, 2022 to June 30, 2023 is 3.?0‘?/0 {annuaﬁsec_!} anq tl_'nis ipc_ludes
0.24% representing government levies on the Fund such as sales taxes, annual fees to commission etc. This ratio is within the
limit of 4.5% prescribed under the NBFC Regulations for a Collective Investment Scheme.

16. TAXATION

As disclosed in note 3.4 the Fund's Income is exempt from Income tax as per clause (99) of part | of the Second Schedule to
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, subject to the condition as mentioned in the said note. Furthermore, as per regulation 63 of
the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulation, 2008, the Fund is required to distribute 90% of the net
accounting income other than unrealised capital gains to the unit holders. Since, the management intends to distribute the
income earned by the Fund during the period to the unit holders in the manner as explained above, accordingly, no provision for
taxation has been made in these financial statements. Further, the Fund is also exempt from the provision of Section 113
(minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Subsequent to period end the Fund distributed 100% of the Income for the period June 30, 2023 through resolution passed
dated July 19, 2023.

16. TRANSACTIONS WITH CONNECTED PERSONS / RELATED PARTIES

Connected persons / related parties include the Management Company, the Trustee, other collective investment schemes
managed by the Management Company, any person or company beneficially owning directly or indirectly ten percent or more of
the capital of the Management Company or the net assets of the Fund, directors and their close family members and key
management personnel of the Management Company.

Transactions with connected persons / related parties essentially comprise sale and redemption of units, fee on account of
managing the affairs of the Fund, other charges and distribution payments to connected persons / related parties.

The transactions with connected persons / related parties are in the normal course of business, at contracted rates and terms
determined in accordance with market rates.

Remuneration to the Management Company and the Trustee of the Fund is determined in accordance with the provisions of the
NBFC Regulations, 2008 and the Trust Deed.

16.1 The details of transactions with connected persons / related parties during the period are as follows:

For the period
from September
21, 2022 to June

: 30, 2023
Transactions during the period --—(Rupees)----
Pak Qatar Asset Management Company Limited (Management Company)

Remuneration to Management Company 6,441,503

Sindh sales tax on Management Company remuneration 837,395

Allocated expenses by the Management Company 508,600

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (Trustee)

Trustee remuneration 644,150

Sindh sales tax on trustee remuneration 83,740
16.2 Details of balances with connected persons / related parties as at period end are as follows:

With Management Company

Remuneration payable to the management company 775,573

Sindh sales tax on management remuneration 100,824

Allocated expenses 225,303

Advertisement and marketing fee payable } 118,460

With Trustee

Remuneration payable 77,557

Deposit with CDC 100,000

Sindh sales tax on Trustee remuneration payable ' 10,082

3%
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18.1.1 Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of.chang_es in
foreign exchange rates. At present, the Fund is not exposed to currency risk as all the transactions are carried out in Pakistani

Rupees.

18.1.2 Yield / Interest rate risk

Yield / interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market interest rates. As of June 30, 2023, the Fund is exposed to such risk on balances held with banks. The
Investment Committee of the Fund reviews the portfolio of the Fund on a regular basis to ensure that the risk is managed
within the acceptable limits.

As of June 30, 2023 details of Fund's interest bearing financial instruments were as follows:

June 30,
Note 2023
----(Rupees)----
Variable rate instrument (financial asset)
Bank balances 4 56,527,833

Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instrument

Presently, the Fund holds balances with banks which expose the Fund to cash flow interest rate risk. In case of 100 basis
points increase/decrease in applicable rates on the last repricing date with all other variables held constant, the net income /
loss for the year and net assets of the Fund would have been higher/lower by Rs. 0.57 million.

As of June 30, 2023 the Fund does not hold any fixed rate instruments.

Yield / interest rate sensitivity position for on-balance sheet financial instruments is based on the earlier of contractual repricing
or maturity date and for off-balance sheet financial instruments is based on settlement date.

The Fund's interest rate sensitivity related to financial assets and financial liabilities as at June 30, 2023 can be determined as

follows:
As at June 30, 2023
Exposed to yield / interest risk
Effective
Particulars yield / More than Not expased to
interest | UPto three | three months [ More than | Yield /interest Total
rate months  |and up to one| one year rate risk
i year

e %) (Rupees)
On-balance sheet financial instruments
Financial assets
Bank balances 14t019.25 56,527,833 - - - 56,527,833
Investments - - - 497,517,895 497,517,895
Profit receivable - - - 575,350 575,350
Depasits - - - 100,000 100,000
Receivable against sale of investments 5 - - 51,414,891 51,414,891
Sub total 56,527,833 - - 549,608,236 606,136,069
Financial liabilities
Payable to Management Company - . - 1,841,357 1,841,357
Payable to Trustee - - - 77,657 77,657
Accrued and other liabilities - - - 63,620,582 63,520,582
Sub total - - - 65,439,496 65,439,496
On-balance sheet gap 56,527,833 - - 484,168,740 540,696,573
Total interest rate sensitivity gap 56,527,833 - - 484,168,740 540,696,573
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap 56,527,833 56,527,833 56,527,833

42 Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company Limited
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18.1.3 Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices (other than those arising from profit rate risk or currency risk) whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the
individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Fund is exposed to equity price risk on investments held by the Fund classified as 'at fair value through profit or loss'. To
manage its price risk arising from investments in equity securities, the Fund diversifies its portfolio within the eligible stocks
prescribed in the Trust Deed. The NBFC Regulations also limit individual equity securities to no more than 16% of net assets and
issued capital of the investee company and sector exposure limit to 35% of the net assets.

In case of 1% increase / decrease in KMI 30 index on June 30, 2023, with all other variables held constant, the total
comprehensive (loss) / income of the Fund for the year would increase / decrease by Rs. 4.975 million and the net assets of the
Fund would increase / decrease by the same amount as a result of gains / losses on equity securities classified as ‘financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss'.

The analysis is based on the assumption that equity index had increased / decreased by 1% with all other variables held constant
and all the Fund's equity instruments moved according to the historical cerrelation with the index. This represents management's
best estimate of a reasonable possible shift in the KMI 30 Index, having regard to the historical volatility of the index. The
composition of the Fund's investment portfolio and the correlation thereof to the KMI 30 Index, is expected to change over time.
Accordingly, the sensitivity analysis prepared as of June 30, 2023 is not necessarily indicative of the effect on the Fund's net
assets of future movements in the level of the KMI 30 Index.

18.2  Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk of loss if counterparties fail to perform as contracted. The fund is exposed to counter party credit risk
on bank balances, investments, profit receivable, deposits and receivable against sale of investments. The credit risk on the fund
is limited because the counterparties are financial institutions with reasonably high credit ratings.

The Fund has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss
from defaults. This information is supplied by independent rating agencies, where available, and if not available, the Fund uses
other publicly available financial information and its own trading records to rate its major customers. The Fund's exposure and the
credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread
amongst approved counterparties.

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed in accordance with the Fund's policy. Investments of
surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty
credit limits are approved by the Board. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risk and therefore mitigate financial loss
through potential counterparty failure.

The Fund's maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying amounts of following financial assets.

; June 30, 2023
5 Balance as per

statement of Maximum
assets and exposure
liabilities
--==-(RUpees)-----

Bank balances 66,527,833 66,527,833
Profit receivable 575,350 675,360
Deposits 100,000 100,000
Receivable against sale of investments 51,414,891 51,414,891

108,618,074 108,618,074

The analysis below summaries the credit rating quality of the Fund's financial assets as at June 30, 2023.

Bank Balances and profit receivable thereon by rating category June 30, 2023
--(Rupees)-- %
Rating
AA- 125,697 0.22%
AA 56,977,486 99.78%
57,103,183 100.00%

Above ratings are on the basis of available ratings assigned by PACRA and VIS Credit Rating Company Limited (Formally JCR-
VIS Credit Rating Company Limited) as of June 30, 2023.

R

Annual Report 2023 43



Al

3

PAK-QATAR

ASSET MANAGEMENT

44

18.3

&

Security deposit

Deposits are placed with CDC for the purpose of of effecting transaction and settlement of listed securities. It is expected lpat all
deposits with CDC will be clearly identified as being asset of the Fund, hence management believes that the Fund is not
materially exposed a credit risk with such respect to such deposit.

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of counterparties whose
aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Fund's total credit exposure. The Fund's portfolio gf ﬁn;nclal ins}ruments
is broadly diversified and transactions are entered into with diverse credit-worthy counterparties thereby mitigating any significant

concentration of credit risk,

Settlement risk

The Fund's activities may give rise to risk at the time of settlement of transactions. Settlement risk is the risk of loss due to the
failure of counter party to honour its obligations to deliver cash, securities or other assets as contractually agreed. Credit risk
relating to unsettled transactions in securities is considered to be minimal as the Fund uses brokers with high creditworthiness
and the transactions are settled or paid for only upon delivery using central clearing system.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting it's obligations arising from it's financial liabilities that are
settied by delivering cash or other financial assets or that such obligations will have to be settled in a manner disadvantageous to
the Funds. Liguidity risk also arises because of the possibility that the Fund could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than
expected. The Fund is exposed to cash redemptions of its units on a regular basis. Units are redeemable at the holder's option
based on the Fund's applicable redemption price calculated in accordance with the Fund's constitutive documents and guidelines
laid down by the commission.

Units of the Fund are redeemable on demand at the holder's option, however, the Fund does not anticipate significant redemption
of units.

The table below analyses the Fund's financial assets and financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the statement of assets and liabilities date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.

June 30, 2023

Financial
Within 1 Over1to3 Over3dtoi12 Over1to5 Morethan5 instruments
months months months years years with no fixed Total
- maturity
(Rupees)
Financial assets
Bank balances 56,527,833 - - - - - 56,527,833
Investments - - - - - 497,517,995 487,517,995
Profil receivable 575,350 - - - - - 575,350
Deposils - - - - - 100,000 100,000
Receivable against sale of 51,414,891 - - - - : 51,414,891
investments
108,518,074 - - - - 497,617,995 606,136,069
Financial
Within 1 Over1to3 Over3to12 Over1to5 Morethan5 instruments
months months months years years with no fixed Total
maturity
(Rupees)
Financial liabilities
Payable to Management 1,841,357 - - - - - 1,841,357
Company
Payable to Trustee 77,557 - - - - - 77,557
Accrued and other liabilities 63,520,582 - - - - - 63,520,582
65,439,496 - - - - - 65,439,496
43,078,578 - - - - 497,617,895 540,696,573

Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company Limited
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19 UNIT HOLDERS' FUND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Fund's capital is represented by redeemable units. The Fund is required by the NBFC Regulations, to maintain a
minimum fund size of Rs.100 million, to be maintained all the time during the life of the scheme. The units issued by the
Fund provides an investor with the right to require redemption for cash at a value proportionate to the unit holder's share in
the Fund's net assets at the redemption date.

The Fund's objective in managing the unit holders' fund is to ensure a stable base to maximise returns to all investors and
to manage liquidity risk arising from redemption. In accordance with the risk management policies, the Fund endeavors to

invest the subscriptions received in appropriate investments while maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet redemption, such
liquidity being augmented by disposal of investments.

20 PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT COMMITTEE AND FUND MANAGER

Details of members of the Investment Committee of the Fund are as follows:

Name Designation Qualification E:fpenence
in years
(Number)
Farhan Shaukat Chief Executive Officer FCA, PGD in Islamic Finance 24
Meraj Uddin Mazhar Chief Investment Officer CFA, FRM, MBA 12
Shahzaib Muhammad Saleem Fund Manager MBA, IFMP, IFC 8
Muhammad Farhan Javaid Head of Risk and Research ACMA 14

20.1 Mr. Shahzaib Muhammad Saleem exclusively serves as the fund manager for this particular fund and is not involved in
managing any other funds.

June 30,
, 2023
21 TOP BROKERS / DEALERS BY PERCENTAGE OF COMMISSION PAID (%)
1 EFG Hermes Pakistan Limited 19.52
2 Chase Securities Pakistan (Private) Limited 19.03
3 Arif Habib Limited 18.42
4 Muttiine Securities (Pvt) Limited ' 10.82
5 Ismail Igbal Securities (Pvt) Ltd. 6.56
6 Topline Securities Limited 6.00
7 AKD Securities Limited 5.72
8 M. R. A Securities (Pvt) Limited 4.42
9 BMA Capital Management Ltd. 3.49
10 Dawood Equities Ltd. 261
22, PATTERN OF UNIT HOLDING
As at June 30, 2023
Number of Number of Investment Percentage
unit holders  units amount investment
---(Rupees)--- %
Individual 7 6,375 637,401 0.12%
Associated companies 6 5,415,028 541,401,468 99.88%

13 5,421,403 542,038,869 100%

N
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23, ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The meeting of Board of Directors were held on September 16, 2022, October 07, 2022, October 28, 2022, February 20,
2023 and April 18, 2023.

Name of persons attendin Numbsr of Humber of mee ings Wastings
thz wisstings g Designation Meetings | Attendance Attended Leave Not
W Held required Granted Attended

Said Gul Chairman 5 5 5 - -
Muhammad Owais Ansari Director 5 5 5 = -
Syed Asad Ali Jilani Director 5 o) 5 - -
Muhammad Kamran Saleem Director 4] 5 5 -
Sameera Said Director 5 5 5 -
Farhan Shaukat Chief Executive Officer 5 5 5 - -

24 GENERAL

241 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rupee unless otherwise stated.

25, DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

u.l: i
These financial statements are approved and authorised for issue on 23 A 2"‘3 by the Board of Directors of the
Management Company.

% For Pak Qatar Asset Management Company Limited
3 (Management Company{
M <" ) =
Chief Exgcutive Officer ((:}ﬁef'FIP\anclal Officer Direct

46 Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company Limited
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FUND’S INFORMATION

Management Company: Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company Limited
G-8/9, Ground Floor, Business Arcade, Block-6
P.E.C.H.S, Shahrah-e-Faisal Karachi.

UAN: (021) 111-PQAMCL (772625)

Website: www.pgamcl.com

Board of Directors
of the Management
Company:

Mr. Said Gul
Mr. Muhammad Owais Ansari
Mr. Syed Asad Ali Shah Jilani

Chairman
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Muhammad Kamran Saleem
Mrs. Sameera Said

Board Audit Committee: Mr. Syed Asad Ali Shah Jilani Chairman
Mr. Muhammad Owais Ansari Member
Mr. Muhammad Kamran Saleem Member

Board Human Resource and  Mr. Syed Asad Ali Shah Jilani Chairman

Remuneration Committee: Mr. Said Gul Member
Mr. Muhammad Kamran Saleem Member
Mr. Farhan Shaukat Member

Board Risk Management Mr. Muhammad Owais Ansari Chairman

Committee: Mr. Muhammad Kamran Saleem Member
Mrs. Sameera Said Member

Chief Executive Officer of: Mr. Farhan Shaukat

The Management Company

Chief Financial Officer &: Mr. Umair Karim

Company Secretary

Chief Internal Auditor: Mr. Tahir Lateef

Trustee: Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

CDC — House, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi.

Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited
MCB Islamic Bank Limited

U Microfinance Bank Limited
Meezan bank Limited

Bankers to the Fund:

Yousuf Adil

Chartered Accountants
Cavish Court, KCHSU,
Shahrah-e-Faisal Karachi

Auditors:
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Shariah Adviser:

Transfer Agent:
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REPORT OF THE FUND MANAGER

Type of Fund

Pak-Qatar Islamic Income Fund, investing primarily in Shariah compliant money market
instruments, Sukuks, Government securities etc.

Objective

To focus on corporate and high net worth investors who prefer long term wealth generation and
capital gain with an objective to invest in medium to long-term income instruments as well as short-
tenor money market instruments to generate superior, long-term, risk-adjusted returns in accordance
with Shariah practices

Investment Policy and Strategy

The fund provides investors with the opportunity to park their excess liquidity in secure high -
quality instruments. As per its investment policy, Pak-Qatar Islamic Income Funds can invest
or place funds in instruments/avenues with a credit rating of at least "A" (A). The weighted
average time to maturity (WATM) of net assets invested in the plan shall not exceed four (4) years;
where securities issued by federal govt. shall be excluded from ascertaining WATM.

Performance Review

Pak-Qatar Islamic Income Fund provided a return of 15.79% in Pak-Qatar Khalis Bachat Plan,
17.29% in Pak- Qatar Income Plan and 16.97% in Pak-Qatar Monthly Income Plan to its investors
for the year ended June 30, 2022 as compared to its benchmark of 6.06%.

The Fund earned a gross income of PKR. 376 million this year, which was primarily due to profit
on bank deposits, placements and Sukuks. The fund also incurred expenses totaling to PKR. 22
million which brought the net income figure to PKR. 354 million. The net assets of the Fund as
at June 30, 2022 were PKR. 313.24 million (Pak-Qatar Khalis Bachat Plan), PKR 4,764.33 million
(Pak-Qatar Income Plan) and PKR 344.19 million (Pak-Qatar Monthly Income Plan).

Fund Stability Rating

PACRA Credit Rating Company has assigned Stability Rating of A+ to Pak-Qatar Income Plan
and Pak-Qatar Monthly Income Plan while A to Pak-Qatar Khalis Bachat Plan.

Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company Limited



PAK-QATAR KHALIS BACHAT PLAN

Asset Allocation

Others including

receivables 4.4% ‘

Placements with
Banks & DFIs
0.0%

Cash 30.3%

Sukuks & Commercial
Papers 65.3%

PAK-QATAR INCOME PLAN

Asset Allocation

Others including
Placements with receivables 4.6%

Banks & DFIs
0.0% ‘

Cash 29.9%

Sukuks &
Government
Securities 65.5%
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PAK-QATAR MONTHLY INCOME PLAN
Asset Allocation

Placements with Others including
Banks & DFIs receivables 4.3%

0.0% ‘

Cash 33.5%

Sukuks &
Commercial
Papers 62.2%
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Report of the Shari'ah Advisor — Pak-Qatar Islamic Income
Fund

) i) daaa b pal) g elnd¥) A Ao aBlad) g 33lall g Caladl Gy ALl 2aad)

g () maiag Al o

In the capacity of Shari'ah Advisor, | have prescribed criteria and procedure to be
followed in ensuring Shari'ah compliance in every investment of Pak-Qatar
Islamic Income Fund and | certify that:

) | have reviewed and approved the modes of investments of Pak-Qatar
Islamic Income Fund in light of the Shari'ah guidelines.

2) All the provisions of the fund and investments made on account of Pak-
Qatar Islamic Income Fund are Shari'ah compliant and in accordance
with the defined criteria.

3) On the basis of information provided by the management, all the operation
of the Pak-Qatar Islamic Income Fund for the year ended June 30, 2023
have been in compliance with Shari’ah principles.

~_

Dr. Mufti Muhammad Zubair Usmani
Shariah Advisor

Annual Report 2023 53



Al

PAK-QATAR

ASSET MANAGEMENT

CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY
OF PAKISTAN LIMITED

Head Office:

CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B’
S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahra-e-Faisal
Karachi - 74400, Pakistan.
Tel:(92-21) 111-111-500

Fax: (92-21) 34326021 - 23

URL: www.cdcpakistan.com
Email: info@cdcpak.com

TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

PAK-QATAR ISLAMIC INCOME FUND

Report of the Trustee pursuant to Regulation 41(h) and clause 8 of Schedule V of
the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008

We Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of Pak-Qatar
Islamic Income Fund (the Fund) are of the opinion that Pak-Qatar Assct Management
Company Limited being the Management Company of the Fund has in all material
respects managed the Fund from October 03, 2022 to June 30, 2023 in accordance with
the provisions of the following:

(1) Limitations imposed on the investment powers of the Management Company
under the constitutive documents of the Fund;

(i) The pricing, issuance and redemption of units are carried out in accordance with
the requirements of the constitutive documents of the Fund,;

(iii) ~ The management fee, fee payable to Commission and other expenses paid from
the Fund during the period are in accordance with the applicable regulatory
framework; and

(iv)  The Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules,
2003, the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations,
2008 and the constitutive documents of the Fund.

\M* mv\\
Badiuddin Akber
Chief Executive Officer
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Karachi, September 28, 2023

54 Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company Limited



Al
PAK-QATAR

ASSET MANAGEMENT

4YOUSUF ADIL Yousuf Adil

Chartered Accountants

Cavish Court, A-35, Block 7 & 8
KCHSU, Shahrah-e-Faisal
Karachi-75350

Pakistan

Tel: +92 (0) 21 3454 6494-7
Fax: +92(0) 21-34541314
www.yousufadil.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Unit Holders of Pak Qatar Islamic Income Fund

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Pak Qatar Islamic Income Fund (the Fund), which comprise the statement of assets
and liabilities as at June 30, 2023, and the income statement, statement of comprehensive income, statement of movement in
unit holders' funds and statement of cash flows for the period from October 03, 2022 to June 30, 2023 (the period) and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give atrue and fair view of the financial position of the Fund as at June 30,
2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the period then ended in accordance with accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Fund and Pak Qatar Asset Management Company Limited
(Management Company) in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Pakistan, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management Company is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit ofthe financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management Company and Board of Directors of the Management Company for the Financial Statements
Management Company is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and for such internal control as the Management Company
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Management Company is responsible for assessing the Fund's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless

Management Company either intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors of the Management Company are responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial reporting process.

Independent Correspondent Firm to
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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»YOUSUF ADIL Yousuf Adil

Chartered Accountants

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Management Company's
internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Management Company.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of Management Company's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with Board of Directors of the Management Company regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Non-Banking Finance
Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 and Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations,

2008.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Hena Sadiq.

Chartered Accountants
Place: Karachi

Date: August 25, 2023
UDIN: AR2023100570UzJEeQTI

Independent Correspondent Firm to
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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PAK QATAR ISLAMIC INCOME FUND

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

AS AT JUNE 30, 2023

June 30, 2023

Pak Qatar Pak Qatar
Pak Qatf' Monthly Khalis Bachat Total
Note e Fian Income Plan Plan
Assets (Rupees)
Bank balances 4 1,283,968,061 92,103,248 90,152,293  1,466,223,602
Investments 5 3,165,976,521 241,102,706 214,452,691  3,621,531,918
Profit receivable 6 138,014,140 11,257,939 9,024,688 158,296,767
Deposits, advances and prepayments 7 667,044 271,164 259,964 1,198,172
Receivable against sale of units 179,625,186 - 495,000 180,120,186
Preliminary expenses and floatation cost 8 237,921 237,921 237,921 713,763
Total assets " 4,768,488,873 344,972,978 314,622,557  5,428,084,408
Liabilities
Payable to Management Company 9 2,486,837 583,030 947,825 4,017,692
Payable to Trustee 10 277,253 23,756 21,042 322,051
Payable to Commission 11 330,288 34,488 34,836 399,612
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 12 1,059,592 143,253 378,979 1,581,824
Total liabilities 4,153,970 784,527 1,382,682 6,321,179
Net assets 4,764,334,903 344,188,451 313,239,875 5,421,763,229
UNIT HOLDERS' FUND (as per Statement of
movements in Unit holders' fund) 4,764,334,903 344,188,451 313,239,875
---------- --~ (Number of units) --==se=seeme=
Number of units in issue 47,566,347 3,436,468 3,127,590
---------------- - (RUPEES) ~remmmmmrnmmcimmnnnns
Net assets value per unit 100.1618 100.1576 100.1538
Contingencies and commitments 13
The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.
3& For Pak Qatar Asset Management Company Limited 7
(Management Comparny)

\f‘f,q/" Sl | 7

Chief Exhcutive Officer (@hief Financial Officer
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PAK QATAR ISLAMIC INCOME FUND
INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD FROM OCTOBER 03, 2022 TO JUNE 30, 2023

INCOME

Profit earned
Gain / (loss) on disposals of debt securities

Net unrealised appreciation on re-measurement of investments
classified as 'at fair value through profit or loss'

Total income

EXPENSES

Remuneration of Management Company

Sindh Sales tax on Management Company remuneration
Remuneration of trustee

Sindh sales tax on trustee remuneration

Annual fee of commission

Auditor's remuneration

Transaction charges

Legal and professional charges

Fund rating fee

Amoartisation of preliminary expenses and floatation costs
Amortisation of premium on Sukuk certificates
Amortisation of premium on GoP ljarah

Selling and marketing expense

Allocated expenses

Shariah advisory fee

Bank charges

Total expenses
Net income for the period before taxation

Taxation
Net income for the period after taxation

Allocation of net income for the period

Net income for the period after taxation
Income already paid on units redeemed

Accounting income available for distribution

Relating to capital gains
Excluding capital gains

Note

14
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For the period from October 03, 2022 to June 30, 2023

k Qata Pak Qatar Pak Qatar
Pa Qam f Monthly  Khalis Bachat Total
incotna Paan Income Plan Plan
( Rupees)
302,121,591 31,267,550 31,555,550 364,944,691
475,100 (37,978) (43,222) 393,900
10,216,897 447,356 176,880 10,841,233
312,813,688 31,676,928 31,689,208 376,179,824
8,629,962 941,036 1,810,508 11,381,506
1,121,895 122,335 235,366 1,479,596
1,238,576 129,331 130,635 1,498,542
161,015 16,813 16,983 194,811
330,287 34,488 34,836 399,611
99,440 99,440 99,440 298,320
1,095,929 62,299 54,083 1,212,311
50,001 50,001 100,000 200,002
26,578 26,578 26,578 79,734
41,310 41,310 41,310 123,930
780,271 47,007 57,583 884,861
6,766 1,838 438 9,042
. 783,374 802,195 1,585,569
1,720,266 242,148 243,903 2,208,317
133,333 133,333 133,333 399,999
1,255 996 1,368 3,619
15,436,884 2,732,327 3,788,559 21,957,770
297,376,804 28,044,601 27,900,649 354,222,054
297,376,804 28,944,601 27,900,649 354,222,054
297,376,804 28,944,601 27,900,649 354,222,054
(274,952,875)  (25,695,533) (26,135,357)  (326,783,765)
22,423,929 3,249,068 1,765,292 27,438,289
10,692,097 409,378 133,658 11,235,133
11,731,832 2,839,690 1,631,634 16,203,156
22,423,929 3,249,068 1,765,292 27,438,289

The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.

i\

et

Chief Eﬂgcuﬁve Officer
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PAK QATAR ISLAMIC INCOME FUND
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD FROM OCTOBER 03, 2022 TO JUNE 30, 2023

For the period from October 03, 2022 to June 30, 2023

Pak Qat Pak Qatar Pak Qatar
; . a;l“ Monthly Khalis Bachat Total
il Income Plan Plan
( Rupees )
Net income for the period after taxation 297,376,804 28,944,601 27,900,649 354,222,054
Other comprehensive income for the period - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the period 297,376,804 28,944,601 27,900,649 354,222,054

The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements. : f

ﬁ For Pak Qatar Asset Management Company Limited
(Manggement Company)

N o

Chief Bxecutive Officer Ghief Financial Officer DireUr ik

60 Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company Limited



61

R [
< g
L? z aalq 1821340 [BlIoUBYI4 133140 3AlN3axX3 LaAIYD
: _Amm \mﬂ_, I &E.Z___. B 0 aARNYaX3 &
aq| 9: i e
X
Mrn m = (Auedwoy Juawsbeuey
papwn] Auedwog juswabeue SSY JEJED YEd 104
"SIUSLIAIE)S [2I0UBLY aSayy] 40 Med [e1Bajul U LU0} GZ 0} | WO S8j0U pexauue ayL
8517001 91517001 61917001 poliad ayj 4o pua Je Jun Jad anjea s}asse 19N
596'8v9 160'868'L 1LZ0'E80°LL
088'3LL 9st'svy 166'91Z'0L uieb pasieaiun -
S80°TLY seL'0st'L $20'998"9 swoou| pasijeay -
: J0 Busudwon piesmao palued awoaul pInguIsipun
596'8¥9 1608681 LZ0ERO'LL PAEMIO) PALLIED SWIOJU] PARNQUYSIPUN
(£ze'sLL'l) (£16'05€"L) (s05'0pe's) {8z =10u) pouad ay} Gulinp uognqUIsig
Tee'saL'L 890'6¥E'E 6Z6CZY'ZT
¥E9'1E9'L 069'6£8'2 Zeg'LEL'LL suieb |eydes Buipnjox3 -
BSS'EEL 8L¢'60Y L60°Z69'01L suieb jeydes o) buneay -
uopnquisip 10} ajqejieAe alwodu) Bugunoday
ST | TR R T aluooul pasijealuf) -
- - - BWooul pasieay -
: jo Buisudwos presuoy Jy awoouy n
62Z'C9L'LZY'S 528'6EZ'SLE 596'8¥9 0L6'065'Z1E 15v'88L 'tVE 160'868'L 09£°06Z'ZVE £06'VES'YAL'Y  LZ0'ES0'LL Z88'VST LY LY pouad ayj jo pus 8y} JE S33sSE JAN
(g88‘029'LZ) (SLL'izy'y) ze'veL'oz (Zep's02Z'LE) (see'LiL'L) +29'e65'LZ (600'50¢°62) (sge'ses'sez)  96s'sco'zez (vaz'vLs'L2s)
(Zv6'268'565) (bo2'12e'28) (zze'ati'y) (2ev's0z'Le) (ems'ssa'0e) (£26'05€'}) (600's0¢'62) (z61'sie'zes)  (sos'ore's) (vBz'y29'Lz8) (82 @=3ou) pouad ay; Buunp uonquIsig
¥S0°'ZZZ'pSE 6p9'006'L2 6¢9'006'LZ - 1096 8T 109'¢P6'82 E y08'9L€'262  ¥08'9LC'L62 - pouad s Joy Stwoou| sAisusy21dwod [ejo )
lesi'sar'vza's)  (1za'vee'sss)  (2se'sei'ez) (¥9zZ'602'LES) (saL'tos'zzy'z) (£E9'sE9'szZ) (ego'z01'268'27)  (99¢'LL9'vB'Y) (528'T96'F22)  (1L6v'$99'69S'Y) syun jo uopdwapal uo ualwked (210 |
(es2'LLr'vEe) (1z¢'288's8) (s5e'seL'sz) (¥90'252'62) (aag'vzi'ze) (ees'sea'sz) (eee'szy'Ly) (996'ssv'ses)  (se8'zse'vez)  (160'905'952) SWooU jo e[z -
(o06'c6200Z'L) ||(00Z'L5¥ L0S) - (ooz'zsv'Los)  ||looc'sso'see’s) - looe'ss9'sse'z) |[(oov'8si'sre's) - (oov'ssi'cic'y) anjen [eyde] -
ZI5'vL0'S © JEMDd
'£8.'958'EZ | dINDd '#85'LEL'EY | dIDd SHUN o uondwispay
0.Z'66L°88¥'CL  119'S00'5L8 = 119'500'5.8 Z00'c0L'89L'Z - z00's0L'89L'C  159'06¢'vbe's . 159'06¢'PY8'6 SHun Jo souenss| uo spaaooid [ejo L
0.8'v98'vL8 Li¥'682'09 & LLr'622'09 206'L.8'6E - 206'LLe'6E 255°L69'v2L C 155'L69'vLL aLooU] JO AT -
oor'vee'cL o'z || ooz'siz'vig = 00Z'91Z'FI8 00L'SZE'6ZLE X 00L'sze'sz2'T || 001'€6L'690'6 s 001'£62'690'6 anjea [ejide] -
zal'zyl'e
dBM0d “1SZ'E62'LZ ‘dINDd "LEG' L6906 ‘dIDd Suun jo sauenss|
= - - - = - - - - = pouad ayj jo BuiuuiBaq sy} je sjasse 19N
seadny
awoauy awoouy |woau
5oL anjea |epde; 1
[e30) paynqLIsIpUn I 2 oL panquisipun O |eyidey g0l punquepuy  "A |eyden

(dEyDd) ueid Jey3eg sijeyy 48D Yed {dnIDd) ueld swoauy Ajguop JeeD Jed
£Z0Z ‘0E |unf" 0} ZZOZ ‘€0 J2q0330 Woay pouad ay) 104

(diDd) ueld awoou) Jejer yed

£20Z ‘0€ ANNI OL 2Z0Z "0 380100 WOH4 QOR3d 3HL ¥04
ANNH SHIATOHLINN NI LNSINIAOW 40 INIWNILYLS
aNNd FWOONI DINVTISI HV.LVO MVd

Annual Report 2023



Al

3

PAK-QATAR

ASSET MANAGEMENT

PAK QATAR ISLAMIC INCOME FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE PERIOD FROM OCTOBER 03, 2022 TO JUNE 30, 2023

For the period from October 03, 2022 to June 30, 2023

Pak Qatar e Pak Qatar Khalis
Monthly Total
Income Plan Bachat Plan
Note Income Plan
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES { Rupees )
Net income for the period before taxation 297,376,804 28,944,601 27,900,649 354,222,054
Adjustments for non cash and other items:
Amortisation of preliminary expenses and floatation costs 41,310 41,310 41,310 123,930
(Gain) / loss on disposals of debt securites (4756,100) 37,978 43,222 (393,500)
Net unrealised appreciation on re-measurement of
investments classified as 'at fair value through profit or loss' (10,216,997) (447,356) (176,880) (10,841,233)
286,726,017 28,676,633 27,808,301 343,110,851
Increase in assets
Investments - net (3,080,284,424)|| (230,693,328) (199,319,033)|| (3,610,296,785)
Profit and dividend receivable (138,014,140) (11,257,939) (9,024,688) (158,296,767)
Deposits, advances and prepayments (667,044) (271,164) (259,964) (1,198,172)
Preliminary expenses and floatation costs (279,231) (279,231) (279,231) (837,683)
(3,218,244,839) (242,601,662) (208,882,916) (3,670,629,417)
Increase in liabilities
Payable to Management Company 2,486,837 583,030 947,825 4,017,692
Payable to Trustee 277,253 23,756 21,042 322,051
Payable to commission 330,288 34,488 34,836 399,612
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,059,592 143,263 378,979 1,681,824
4,153,970 784,527 1,382,682 6,321,179

Net cash used in operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net receipts from issuance of units

Payment against redemption of Units

Dividend distribution

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

18

(2,928,364,852)

(213,140,602)

(179,691,933)

(3,321,197,387)

The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.

S
\\A,\\r-é”’/

Chia@i’ecutive Officer

For Pak Qatar Asset Management Company Limited

woY

Ghief/Financial Officer

Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company Limited

9,664,865,471 || 2,768,703,002 874,610,611 || 13,308,079,084
(4,844,617,366)|| (2,422,803,166)||  (557,344,621)|| (7,824,765,153)
(532,915,192)||  (30,655,986) (32,321,764)||  (595,892,942)
4,287,332,913 315,243,850 284,844,226 4,887,420,989
1,358,068,061 102,103,248 105,152,293 1,5666,223,602
1,368,968,061 102,103,248 105,152,293  1,566,223,602
(Management Company) /
/
Jr/
e
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PAK QATAR ISLAMIC INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM OCTOEER 03, 2022 TO JUNE.30, 2023

1.1

1.2

1.3

14

1.5

1.6

1.7

21

A\

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Pak Qatar Islamic income Fund (the Fund) is an open-ended Shariah compliant scheme constituted under a Trust Deed
entered into on June 28, 2022 between Pak Qatar Asset Management Company Limited (PQAMCL) as the Management
Company and the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) as the Trustee. The Fund was authorised by the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (the Commisison) as a unit trust scheme on July, 07 2022. The initial
public offering (IPO) of the Fund was made on Initial Offering Period from September 27, 2022 to October 03, 2022 (both
days inclusive), and the Fund commenced operation from October 03, 2022. In accordance with the Trust Deed, the first
accounting period of the Fund commenced on the date on which the Fund's property was first transferred to the trustee i.e.,
period commencing on October 03, 2022 and shall ending on June 30, 2023 of the succeeding calendar year.

The Management Company of the Fund is registered as Non Banking Finance Company (NBFC) under NBFC Rules, 2003
and has obtained the requisite license from the Commission to undertake Asset Management Services. The registered
office of the management company Is situated at Suite # G-8/9, Business Arcade, Block 6, Pakistan Employees Co-
Operative Housing Society (PECHS), Karachi, in the province of Sindh.

The Fund is an open-ended Shariah Compliant Income Scheme and offers units for public subscription on a continuous
basis. The units are transferable and can also be redeemed by surrendering to the fund.

According to the Trust Deed, the objective of the Fund is to generate superior, long term, risk-oriented returns in
accordance with Shariah Compliant Islamic Income Category. The Fund is categorised as an open end Shariah Compliant
(Islamic) Income Scheme in accordance with Circular 7 of 2009, issued by the Commission. Mufti Dr Muhammad Zubair
Usmani acts as its Shariah Advisor to ensure that the activities of the Fund are in compliance with the principles of Shariah.

These financial statements has been prepared from dates of launch of the fund. i.e from October 03, 2022 to June 30, 2023
(the period), therefore there are no corresponding numbers in these financial statements.

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) has maintained rating of Pak Qatar Income Plan (PQIP) and Pak
Qatar Monthly Income Plan (PQMIP) as "A+(f)" and for Pak Qatar Khalis Bachat Plan (PQKBP) as "A(f)" as of June 30,
2023.

The title to the assets of the Fund is held in the name of the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as the
Trustee of the Fund.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These financial statements has been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act; 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIl A of the repealed Companies Ordinance
1984; and

- The Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules), the Non-
Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Reqgulations) and requirements of the
Trust Deed.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIll A of the repealed Companies
Ordinance 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and requirements of the Trust Deed differ from the IFRS
Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIl A of the repealed Companies
Ordinance 1884, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulation and requirements of the Trust Deed have been followed.
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22 New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the period ended June 30,
2023

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the period ended June 30, 2023. These
standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to have
significant impact on the Company's financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

- Amendments to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' - Reference to the conceptual framework
- Amendments to IAS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment' - Proceeds before intended use

- Amendments to IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets' - Onerous Contracts — cost of
fulfilling a contract

- Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle (related to [FRS 9, IFRS 16 and [AS 41)

23 New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are not yet effective

Effective from Accounting
period beginning on or after

- Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Disclosure of January 01, 2023
accounting policies

- Amendments to IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors' - Definition of accounting estimates January 01, 2023

- Amendments to 'lAS 12 Income Taxes' - deferred tax related to assets and January 01, 2023
liabilities arising from a single transaction.

= Amendments to IAS 12 ' Income taxes' - International Tax Reform — Pillar Two January 01, 2023
Mode! Rules
- Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Classification of January 01, 2024

liabilities as current or non-current

- Amendments to IFRS 16 ' Leases' -Clarification on how seller-lessee January 01, 2024
subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions

- Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' and 'IFRS 7 ‘Financial January 01, 2024
instruments disclosures' - Supplier Finance Arrangements

- Amendments to IFRS 10 and 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Deferred indefinitely
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

Other than the aforesaid amendments, IASB has also issued the following standards which have not been adopted locally
by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan:

- IFRS 1 — First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts

2.4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan requires the management to make estimates, judgements and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, income and expenses. It also requires the management to exercise judgment in the application of its
accounting policies. The estimates, judgements and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. The areas involving a degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
estimates and assumptions are significant to the financial statements are documented in the following accounting policies,
notes and relate primarily to:

8
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The areas involving a degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where estimates and assumptions are significant to the
financial statements are as follows:

Note
- Classification and valuation of financial assets 3414
- Impairment of financial assets 3114
- Classification and valuation of financial liabilities 3.1.21
- Taxation 3.4

The revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that year, or in the year of revision and future years if the revision affects both current and future years.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for investments which are
stated at fair value.

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in these financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Fund operates. These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Fund's functional and
presentation currency. Amounts presented in these financial statements have been round off to the nearest thousand
rupees, unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The below mentioned accounting policies have been adopted for the preparation of these financial statements:

Financial instruments
Recognition and initial measurement of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities, with the exception of bank balances, are recognised in the Fund's statement of
assets and liabilities when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition, Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the income statement. This includes regular way trades: purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place. Bank balances are recognised when funds are transferred to the banks.

Classification
Debt instruments

A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at

FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are sclely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt instrument is measured at FVOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

B the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Annual Report 2023
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A debt instrument held for trading purposes or which does not meet the solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)
criterion is classified as measured at FVTPL.

In addition, on initial recognition, the Fund may irrevocably designate a debt instrument that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL, if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Business model assessment

The Fund's business madel is not assessed on an instrument by instrument basis, but at a higher level of aggregated
portfolios and is based on observable factors such as: the objectives for the portfolio; how the performance of the business
model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated and reported to the entity's key management
personnel; the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business
model) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed etc.

Assessments whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)

As a second step of its classification process the Fund assesses the contractual terms of financial assets to identify
whether they pass the SPPI criteria.

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and may change
over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of principal or amortisation of the premium /

discount).

The maost significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration for the time value of
money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the Fund applies judgement and considers relevant factors such as

the currency in which the financial asset is denominated, and the period for which the interest rate is set.

In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more than de minimis exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash
flows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do not give rise to contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the amount outstanding. In such cases, the financial asset is required to be measured at FVTPL.

3.1.1.2 Subsequent Measurment
Debt investments at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Profit calculated using the effective interest method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in the income statement.

Debt instruments at amortised cost
These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is

reduced by impairment losses. Profit, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in the income
statement.

3.1.1.3 Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised where the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or the Fund has transferred its rights to

receive cash flows from the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full withcut material delay
to a third party under a pass-through arrangement and the Fund has:

(a) Transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset; or

(b) Neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

K
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When the Fund has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset (or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement), and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Fund's continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the
fund also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the fund has retained. The Fund derecognises a financial liability when the obligation
under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired.

3.1.1.4 Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 8 requires an expected credit loss model which requires an entity to account for expected credit losses and changes
in those expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

For financial assets other than debt securities measured at amortised cost, IFRS 9 requires recognition of impairment
based on expected credit loss (ECL) maodel. Under IFRS 9, the Fund is required to measure loss allowance equal to an
amount equal to lifetime ECL or 12 months ECL based on credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when
estimating ECLs, the Management Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the
Fund's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-locking information.

However, majority of the assets of the Fund exposed to credit risk pertain to counter parties which have high credit rating or
where credit risk has not been increased since initial recognition. Therefore, management believes that the impact of ECL
would be very minimal and hence, the same has not been accounted for in these financial statements.

3.1.1.5 Determination of fair value
The fair value of financial assets are determined as follows:

i)  Debt securities (other than Government securities)
The debt securities are valued on the basis of rates determined by the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan
(MUFAP) in accordance with the methodology prescribed by SECP for valuation of debt securities vide its Circular No.
33 of 2012 dated 24 October 2012. In the determination of the rates, MUFAP takes into account the holding pattern of
these securities and categorises them as traded, thinly traded and non-traded securities. The circular also specifies
the valuation process to be followed for each category as well as the criteria for the provisioning of non-performing
debt securities.

ii)” Debt securities (Government securities)
The government securities not listed on a stock exchange and traded in the interbank market are valued at the
average rates quoted on a widely used electronic quotation system (PKRV rates) which are based on the remaining
tenure of the securities.

3.1.2  Financial liabilities
3.1.2.1 Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, unless they are required to be measured at fair value through profit or
loss (such as instruments held for trading or derivatives) or the Fund has opted to measure them at fair value through prefit
or loss.

3.1.2.2 Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expire. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Income
statement. '

\
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3.1.3 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of assets and liabilities if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

3.2 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of bank balances and money market placements.

33 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of the amount of obligation can be made. Provisions are regularly reviewed and adjusted to reflect the current best

estimate.

3.4 Taxation

Income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under Clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001, subject to the condition that not less than 80% of its accounting income for the period, as reduced by
capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, is distributed to the unit holders.

The Fund is also exempt from the provisions of Section 113 (minimum tax) and section 113C (Alternative Corporate Tax)
under clause 11A of Part [V of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

3.5 Distribution and appropriations

Distributions and appropriations are recorded in the period in which these are approved by the Board of Directors of the
Management Company. Based on the Mutual Fund Association of Pakistan's (MUFAP) guidelines duly consented by
Commission, distribution for the period also include portion of income already paid on units redeemed during the period.

Regulation 63 of NBFC regulations, requires the fund to distribute 80% of net accountiung income other than capital gains
of the unit holders

Distribution declared after period end / reporting date are considered as non-adjusting events and are recognised in
finanacial statements of the period in which such distributions are declared and are approved by Board of Directors of
Management Company.

3.6 Issue and redemption of units

Units issued are recorded at the offer price, determined by the Management Company for the application received during
business hours on that day. The offer price represents the Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit as of the close of the business
day, plus the allowable sales load and provision of any duties and charges if applicable. The sales load is payable to
investment facilitators, distributors and the Management Gompany.

Units redeemed are recorded at the redemption price applicable to units for which the Management Company receives
redemption application during business hours of that day. The redemption price shall be equal to NAV as of the close of the
business day, less an amount as the Management Company may consider to be an appropriate provision of duties and
charges as processing fee.

Element of income represents the difference between net assets value per unit on the issuance or redemption date, as the
case may be, of units and the net assets value per unit at the beginning of the relevant accounting period. Further, the
element of income is a transaction of capital nature and the receipt and payment of element of income is taken to unit
holders' fund. However, to maintain the same ex-dividend net asset value of all units outstanding on the accounting date,
net element of income contributed on issue of units lying in unit holders fund is refunded on units in the same proportion as
dividend bears to accounting income available for distribution.

68 Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company Limited



3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.1

4.1

Al

3

PAK-QATAR

ASSET MANAGEMENT

Net asset value per unit

The net asset value (NAV) per unit as disclosed in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities is calculated by dividing the net
assets of the Fund by the number of units in issue at the year end.

Revenue recognition
- Gain or loss on sale of investment is accounted for in the income statement in the period in which it arises.

- Unrealised gains / (losses) arising on remeasurement of investments are classified as 'fair value through profit or loss’
is included in the income statement in the period in which it arises.

- Profit on bank deposits is recognised on time proportionate basis using effective yield method.

- Profit / mark-up on debt and government securities, term finance certificates and sukuk certificates is recognised on a
time proportionate basis using effective interest method.

Expenses

All expenses chargeable to the Fund including remuneration of Management Company, Trustee fee, annual fee of the
Commission and selling and marketing expense are recognised in the income statement on an accrual basis.

Basis of allocation of expenses to each sub-fund

Remuneration to the Management Company, Trustee fee, annual fee to the commissian and selling and marketing expense
is allocated to each sub-fund on the basis of the net assets of the sub-fund

- Expenses specifically incurred by a sub-fund, such as custody and settlement charges, fees and subscription and bank

charges are charged to that sub-fund.
Auditors' remuneration and legal and professional charges are allocated equally among sub-funds.
Earnings per unit

Earnings per unit (EPU) has not been disclosed as in the opinion of the Management, determination of weighted average
units for calculating EPU is not practicable.

June 30, 2023

Pak Qatar Pak Qatar
Monthly Khalis Bachat
Income Plan Plan

Pak Qatar

Income Plan Total

BANK BALANCES ( Rupees )

Note

Savings accounts 4.1 1,283,968,061 92,103,248 90,152,293 1,466,223,602

The rate of return on savings accounts range between 14.5% to 21% per annum.

INVESTMENTS
June 30, 2023

Pak-Qatar Pak-Qatar
Monthly Khalis Bachat
Income Plan Plan

Pak-Qatar
Income Plan

Total

{ Rupees )

At fair value through profit or loss

- Sukuk certificates 51.1,52.1&5.3.1 1,762,138,856 156,105,526 169,499,682 2,087,744,064

- GoP ljarah sukuk certificates 51.2,52.28&53.2 1,328,837,665 74,997,180 29,953,008 1,433,787,854
3,090,976,521 231,102,706 199,452,691 3,521,531,918

At amortised cost

- Money market placements 513,562385.3.3 75,000,000 10,000,000 15,000,000 100,000,000
3,165,976,521 241,102,706 214,452,691 3,621,531,918
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5.4 Net unrealised diminution on
re-measurement of investments classified
as 'at fair value through profit or loss’

Market value of investments
Carrying value of investments

6. PROFIT RECEIVABLE

Profit receivable from:

- Savings accounts

- GoP ljarah sukuk certificates
- Sukuk certificates

- Money market placements

7. DEPOSITS, ADVANCES AND PREPAYMENTS

Deposits with Trustee
Advance tax
Prepaid rating fee

Note

8. PRELIMINARY EXPENSES AND FLOATATION COSTS

Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Opening balance
Amortisation during the period
Closing balance

8.1 Preliminary expenses and floatation costs represent expenditure incurred prior to the commencement of operations of the
Fund. These costs are amortised over a period of five years in accordance with the requirements set out in the Trust Deed

8.1
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PAK-QATAR
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June 30, 2023
Pak Qatar Pak Qatar
ak Qat
In:omc:apiaa: n Monthly Khalis Total
Income Plan Bachat Plan
(Rupees)

3,090,976,520
3,080,759,523

231,102,706 199,452,692
230,655,350 198,275,812

3,621,531,918
3,510,680,685

10,216,997 447,356 176,880 10,841,233
18,485,828 1,726,641 1,540,106 21,752,575
50,026,710 3,056,230 1,040,476 54,123,416
69,295,095 6,447,534 6,402,805 82,145,434
208,507 27,534 41,301 275,342
138,014,140 11,257,939 9,024,688 158,296,767
100,000 100,000 100,000 300,000
542,956 147,076 135,875 825,907
24,088 24,088 24,089 72,265
667,044 271,164 259,964 1,198,172
279,231 279,231 279,231 837,693
41,310 41,310 41,310 123,930
41,310 41,310 41,310 123,930
237,921 237,921 237,921 713,763

Clause 15.3 of the Fund and the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008.

8. PAYABLE TO MANAGEMENT COMPANY

Remuneration of the Management Company
Sindh sales tax on the Management fee
Other payable to the Management Company
Selling and marketing expenses

Allocated expense payable
Preliminary expenses and floatation costs payable

N

Annual Report 2023

Note

9.1
9.2

9.3
9.4
8.1

June 30, 2023

Pak Qatar

Pak Qatar Pak Qatar

Iheomo Bian Monthly Khalis Total
Income Plan Bachat Plan
(Rupees)

1,635,711 140,153 248,283 2,024,147
212,642 18,220 32,277 263,139

- - 254,476 254,476

- 84,408 75,727 160,136

395,973 97,737 94,551 588,261
242,511 242,511 242,511 727,533
2,486,837 583,030 947,825 4,017,692
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91 As per‘regulallon 6“! of the NBFC Regulations, 2008, the Management Company is entitled to a remuneration equal to an amount not
exceadm_g the maximum rate of the management fee as disclosed in the Offering Document subject into the total expense ratio limit. As
per Offering Document the management company can charge management fee upto 1%, 1% and 1.5% of average annual net assets on
PQIP, PQIMP and PQKBP respectively. The fee is payable monthly in arrears to the Management Company. The Management
Company has charged management fee at the following rates:

- Pak Qatar Income Plan

From 03 October, 2022 to 27 November, 2022 1% on the average annual net assets of the Fund
From 28 November, 2022 to 30 June, 2023 0.5% on the average annual net assets of the Fund
- Pak Qatar Monthly Income Plan

From 03 October, 2022 to 27 November, 2022 1% on the average annual net assets of the Fund
From 28 November, 2022 to 30 June, 2023 0.5% on the average annual net assets of the Fund
- Pak Qatar Khalis Bachat Plan

From 03 October, 2022 to 27 November, 2022 1.5% on the average annual net assets of the Fund
From 28 November, 2022 to 30 June, 2023 1% on the average annual net assels of the Fund

9.2 Sindh sales tax on services at the rate of 13% on gross value of management fee is charged under the provisions of Sindh sales tax on
Services Act, 2011. :

9.3  The SECP hgs allowed the Asset Management Companies to charge selling and marketing expenses to all categories of open-end
mutual funds {except fund of funds).

The asset management company can charge selling and marketing expenses to the Fund based on its discretion subject to not being
higher than actual expenses. The Management Company has charged selling and marketing expenses at following rates:

- Pak Qatar income Plan

From 28 November, 2022 to 30 June, 2023 Nil

- Pak Qatar Monthly Income Plan
From 28 November, 2022 to 30 June, 2023 0.5% on the average annual net assets of the Fund

- Pak Qatar Khalis Bachat Plan

From 28 November, 2022 to 30 June, 2023 0.5% on the average annual net assets of the Fund

9.4  In accordance with Regulation 60 of the NBFC Regulations, the Management Company is entitled to charge fees and expenses related
to registrar services, accounting, operation and valuation services, related to Collective Investment Scheme (CIS). The Management

Company has charged allocated expenses at the following rates:

- Pak Qatar Income Plan
From 03 October, 2022 to 30 June, 2023 0.10% on the average annual net assets of the Fund

- Pak Qatar Monthly Income Plan
From 03 October, 2022 to 30 June, 2023 0.10% on the average annual net assets of the Fund

- Pak Qatar Khalis Bachat Plan

From 03 October, 2022 to 30 June, 2023 0.10% on the average annual net assets of the Fund

76 Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company Limited
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June 30, 2023
Pak Qatar Pak Qatar
Pak Qatar A
incame Plas Monthly Khalis Bachat Total
Income Plan Plan
Note (Rupees)
PAYABLE TO TRUSTEE
Trustee fee 10.1 45
Sindh sales tax payable on Trustee i b g sl
fee 10.2 . 31,896 2,733 2,097 36,726
277,253 23,756 21,042 322,051

The Trustee is entitled to monthly remuneration for services rendered to the fund at the flat rate of 0.075% per annum of average net
assets.

Sindh sales fax on services has been charged at 13% on gross value of Trustee fee levied through sales tax on Services Act, 2011.

June 30, 2023

Pak Qatar Pak Qatar
Pak Qatar
InSome Plan Monthly Khalis Bachat Total
: Income Plan Plan
Note. (Rupees)
PAYABLE TO THE COMMISSION
Annual fee payable 144 330,288 34,488 34,836 399,612

Under the provision 60(3)(h} of the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulation, 2008, -all Collective Investment
Schemes are required to pay an annual fee, to Commission at an amount equal to 0.02% of the average annual net assets of the
scheme, revised as per SRO 685(1)/2019 dated 28th June 2019,

June 30, 2023

Pak Qatar Pak Qatar
ik Mor?thly Khalis %achat Total
Income Plan
Income Plan Plan
(Rupees)

ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABLITIES
Auditor's remuneration payable 63,800 63,800 63,800 191,400
Brokerage fee payable : 196,823 1,949 1,408 200,180
Legal and professional charges payable 2,607 34,233 84,231 121,161
Withholding tax payable 796,191 42,766 223,458 1,062,415
Capital gain tax payable 81 505 6,082 6,668

1,059,592 143,253 378,979 1,581,824

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
There were no contingencies and commitments as at June 30, 2023.

For the period from October 03, 2022 to June 30, 2023

Pak Qatar Pak Qatar
i Q“:’ Monthly  Khalis Bachat Total
incoms Plap income Plan Plan
Note ---( Rupees )----
PROFIT EARNED
Profit earned on: :
- Savings accounts 41 98,407,123 12,152,612 11,167,144 121,726,879
- GoP ljarah sukuk certificates 51.2,5228&53.2 88,885,784 2,639,598 2,145,569 93.673.2?;
- Income from Sukuk certificates 51.1,521&531 114,622,177 16,447,806 18,201,536 149,271, .
- Profit on placement 513,523&533 208,507 27,534 41,301 275,342
302,121,591 31,267,550 31,555,650 364,944,691
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For the period from October 03, 2022 to June 30, 2023

Pak Qatar Pak Qatar
Pak Qatar e
Income Plan Monthly Khalis Bachat Total
Income Plan Plan
-( Rupees )
15.  AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION
Audit fee 83,704 83,704 83,704 251,112
Out of Pocket 8,370 8,370 8,370 25,110
Sindh sales tax on services 7,366 7,366 7,366 22,098
99,440 99,440 99,440 298,320

16.  TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO

The Total Expense Ratio (TER) of the Pak-Qatar Income Plan, Pak-Qatar Monhtly Income Plan, Pak-Qatar Khalis Bachat Plan as at
June 30, 2023 is 0.69%, 1.17%, 1.61% which includes 0.08%, 0.08%, 0.12% respectively, representing government levies on the Fund
such as sales taxes, annual fee to the Commission, etc.

17. TAXATION

As disclosed in note 3.4 the Fund's Income is exempt from Income tax as per clause (99) of part | of the Second Schedule to the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001, subject to the condition as mentioned in the said pote. Furthermore, as per regulation 63 of the Non-Banking
Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulation, 2008, the Fund Is required to distribute 80% of the net accounting income other
than unrealised capital gains to the unit holders. Since, the management have distributed the income earned by the Fund during the
period to the unit holders in the manner as explained above, accordingly, no provision for taxation has been made in these financial
statements. Further, the Fund is also exempt from the provision of Section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second
Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

For the period from October 03, 2022 to June 30, 2023

Pak Qatar Pak Qatar
Pak Qatar Monthly  Khalis Bachat Total
Income Plan
Income Plan Plan
. Note { Rupees )
18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Savings accounts 4 1,283,968,061 92,103,248 90,152,293 1,466,223,602
Money market placements 5 76,000,000 10,000,000 15,000,000 100,000,000

1,358,968,061 102,103,248 105,152,293 1,566,223,602

19. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES / CONNECTED PERSONS

Related parties / connected persons of the Fund include Pak Qatar Asset Management Company (being the Management Company")
and its related entities, the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (being the trustee of the Fund), other collective investment
schemes, pension fund schemes managed by the Management Company, directors, key management personnel and other associated
undertaking and connected persans. Connected persons also include any person benefically owing directly or indirectly 10% or maore
units in the issue / net assets of the Fund.

Transactions with connected persons essentially comprise sale and redemption of units, fee on account of managing of affairs of the
Fund, other charges, sale and purchase of investments and distribution of payments of investments and distribution payments to
connected persons. The transactions with connected persons are in the normal course of the business, at contracted rates and at terms
determined in accordance with market rates.

Remuneration to the Management Company and the trustee of the Fund is determined in accordance with the provisions of the NBFC
Regulations and notified entities regulations, 2008 and trust deed.

Details of transactions and balances at year end with related parties / connected persons, other than those which have been disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, are as follows:

78 Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company Limited
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Fund's objective in managing risk is the creation and protection of unit holders’ value. Risk is inherent in the Fund's
activities, but it is managed through monitoring and controlling activities which are primarily set up to be performed based
on limits established by the Management Company, the constitutive documents of the Fund and the regulations and
directives of the Commission. These limits reflect the business strategy and market environment of the Fund as well as the
level of the risk that the Fund is willing to accept. The Board of Directors of the Management Company supervises the
overall risk management approach within the Fund. The Fund is exposed to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk arising
from the financial instruments it holds.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of
changes in market prices.

The Management Company manages market risk by monitoring exposure on marketable securities by following the internal
risk management policies and investment guidelines approved by the Board and the regulations laid down by the
Commission, the NBFC regulations and the NBFC rules.

Market risk comprises of three types of risk: currency risk, profit rate risk and price risk.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes
in foreign exchange rates. At present, the Fund is not exposed to currency risk as all the transactions are carried out in

Pakistani Rupees.

Profit rate risk
Profit rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes
in market profit rates. As of June 30, 2023, the Fund is exposed to such risk on balances held with banks, sukuks and

money market placements. The Investment Committee of the Fund reviews the portfalio of the Fund on a regular basis to
ensure that the risk is managed within the acceptable limits.

As of June 30, details of Fund's profit bearing financial instruments were as follows:

June 30, 2023

Pak Qatar Pak Qatar
Note Ini?:k Qa;?;n Monthly Khalis Bachat Total
i Income Plan Plan
( Rupees )
Variable rate instruments (financial asset)
Balances with banks 4 1,283,968,061 92,103,248 90,152,293  1,466,223,602
Sukuk certificates 5 1,762,138,856 156,105,526 169,499,682 2,087,744,064
GoP ljarah sukuk certificates 5 . 1,328,837,665 74,997,180 29,953,009 1,433,787,854
4,374,944,582 323,205,954 289,604,984 4,987,755,520
Fixed rate instruments (financial assets)
Money market placements 5 75,000,000 10,000,000 45,000,000 100,000,000

Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

As at June 30, 2023, the Fund holds KIBOR based sukuks certificates, Government ljara Sukuk and profit based balances
with banks which expose the Fund to profit rate risk. In case of 100 basis points increase/decrease in applicable rates on
the last repricing date with all other variables held constant, the net income / loss for the year and net assets of the Fund
would have been higher/lower by Rs 49.878 million.
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Yield rate sensitivity position for on-balance sheet financial instruments is based on the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity
date and for off-balance sheet financial instruments is based on settlement date.

82

a) Pak Qatar Income Plan

As at June 30, 2023
Exposed to yleld risk
More than
Particulars Effective Not exposed to
yleld { rate Upto three three months | More than one yield rate risk Total
| months and up to one year
year
(%) (Rupees)
On-balance sheet financlal instruments
Financial assets
Bank balances 14,5 - 21 1,283,968,061 - - - 1,283,968,061
Investments
- Sukuk certificates 16.3-25.8 - - 1,762,138,856 - 1,762,138,856
- GOP ljarah sukuk certificates 15.7 - 16.8 - - 1,328,837,665 - 1,328,837,665
- Money market placements 201 75,000,000 - - - 75,000,000
Profit receivable . - ’ 138,014,140 138,014,140
Deposits with Turstee - - . 100,000 100,000
Receivable against sale of units - - - 179,625,186 179,625,186
Sub total 1,358,968,061 - 3,090,976,521 317,739,326 4,767,683,908
Financial liabilities
Payable to the Management Company - - - 2,486,837 2,486,837
Payable to the Trustee - - - 277,253 277,253
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - - - 263,320 263,320
Sub total . . - 3,027,410 3,027,410
On-balance sheet gap 1,368,968,081 - 3,090,976,521 314,711,916 4,764,656,498
Total profit rate sensitivity gap 1,358,968,061 - 3,090,976,521 314,711,916  4,764,656,498
Cumulative profit rate sensitivity gap - 1,358,968,061 1,358,968,061 4,449,944,582
b} Pak Qatar Monthly Income Plan
As at June 30, 2023
Exposed to yleld risk
More than
Partlculars Effective Not exposed to
yleld / rate Upto three | three months | More than one yleld rate risk Total
months and up to one year
year
(%) (Rupees)
On-balance sheet financial instruments
Financial assets
Bank balances 14.5-21 92,103,248 - - - 92,103,248
Investments
- Sukuk certificates 16.3-259 - - 156,105,526 B 156,105,626
- GOP ljarah sukuk certificates 15.7 - - 74,997,180 - 74,997,180
- Money market placements 20.1 10,000,000 - - - 10,000,000
Profit receivable - - - 11,257,940 11,257,940
Deposits with Turstee - - - 100,000 100,000
Receivable against sale of units - & : il &
Sub total 102,103,248 . 231,102,706 11,357,940 344,563,894
Financial liabilities
Payable to the Management Company - - - 583,030 583,030
Payable to the Trustee - - - 23,756 23,756
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - - - 99,982 99,982
Sub total - - - 706,768 706,768
On-balance sheet gap 102,103,248 - 231,102,706 10,651,172 343,857,126
Total profit rate sensitivity gap 102,103,248 - 231,102,706 10,651,172 343,857,126
Cumulative profit rate sensitivity gap 102,103,248 102,103,248 333,205,954

Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company Limited
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c) Pak-Qatar Khalls Bachat Plan

=2 As at June 30, 2023
Exposed to yleld risk
More than
Particulars Effective Not exposed to
yield / rate Upto three three months | More than one yleld rate risk Total
months and up to one year
year
(%) (Rupees)
On-balance sheet financial instruments
Financial assets
Bank balances 14.5-21 90,152,293 - - - 90,152,293
Investments
- Sukuk certificates 16.3 - 25.9 - - 168,499,682 - 169,499,682
- GOP ljarah sukuk certificates 15.7 - - 29,953,009 - 29,953,009
- Money market placements 20.1 15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000
Profit receivable - - - 9,024,688 9,024,688
Depaosits with Turstee - - - 100,000 100,000
Receivable against sale of units - - - 495,000 495,000
Sub total 105,152,293 - 199,452,691 9,619,688 314,224,672
Financial llabllitles
Payable to the Management Company - - - 947,825 947,825
Payable to the Trustee " - - - 21,042 21,042
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - - - 149,439 149,439
Sub total 5 - . 1,118,306 1,118,306
On-balance sheet gap 106,162,293 - 199,452,691 8,501,382 313,106,366
Total profit rate sensitivity gap 105,152,293 - 199,452,691 8,501,382 313,106,366
Cumulative profit rate sensitivity gap 105,152,293 105,152,293 304,604,984

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
prices (other than those arising from profit rate risk or currency risk) whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the
individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. Since the Fund is
not allowed ot invest in equity securities, hence it is not exposed to equity price risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk of loss If counterparties fail to perform as contracted. The Fund is exposed to counter party credit risks
on investment in sukuk certificates, money market placements, profit receivables, receivables against sale of units, security deposit
and balances with banks. The credit risk for Fund is limited because the counterparties are financial institutions with reasonably high
credit ratings.

The Fund has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from
defaults. This information is supplied by independent rating agencies, where available, and if not available, the Fund uses other
publicly available financial information and its own trading records to rate its major customers. The Fund's exposure and the credit
ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions conclided is spread amongst
approved counterparties.

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed in accordance with the Fund's policy. Investments of
surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credil
limits are approved by the Board of Directors of the management company. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risk
and therefore mitigate financial loss through potential counterparty failure.
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The Fund's maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying amounts of following financial assets.

June 30, 2023

nce as per
Pak Qatar PaKGatar DRSNCOBE P

Pak Qatar statement of Maximum
Income Plan Monthl;lr Kha[lpsl Eiachist assetsand  exposure
i i liabilities
(Rupees)

Bank balances 1,283,968,061 92,103,248 90,152,293 1,466,223,602 1,466,223,602
Investments 3,165,976,5621 241,102,706 214,452,691 3,621,531,918 2,187,744,064
Profit receivable 138,014,140 11,257,939 9,024,688 158,296,767 104,173,350
Deposits with Turstee 100,000 100,000 100,000 300,000 300,000
Receivable against sale of units 179,625,186 - 485,000 180,120,186 180,120,186

4,767,683,908 344,563,893 314,224,672 5,426,472,473 3,938,561,202

Difference in the balance as per the statement of assets and liabilities and maximum exposure is due to the fact that invegme_nta in
Government securities of Rs. 1,434 million including profit receivable on such government securities of Rs. 54.12 million is not
exposed to credit risk.

The analysis below summaries the credit rating quality of the Fund's financial assets as at June 30, 2023.

Bank Balances and profit receiveable thereon by rating category
June 30, 2023

Rating Rupees B ) Bt

A 118,985 0.01

AAA 373,591 0.03

A+ 697,688,098 46,89

AA 789,795,602 53.08
1,487,976,176 100

Above ratings are on the basis of available ratings assigned by PACRA and VIS Credit Rating Company Limited (Formally JCR-VIS
Credit Rating Company Limited) as of June 30, 2023.

Security deposits

Deposits are placed with trustee. It is expected that all deposits with trustee will be clearly identified as being assets of the Fund,
hence management believes that the Fund is not materially exposed to a credit risk with respect to such deposits.

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of counterparties whose
aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Fund's total credit exposure. The Fund's portfolio of finarcial instruments is
broadly diversified and transactions are entered into with diverse credit-worthy counterparties thereby mitigating any significant
concentration of credit risk.

Settlement risk

The Fund's activities may give rise to risk at the time of settlement of transactions. Settlernent risk is the risk of loss due to the failure
of counter party to honour its obligations to deliver cash, securities or other assets as contractually agreed. Credit risk relating to
unsettled transactions in securities is considered to be minimal as the Fund uses brokers with high creditworthiness and the
transactions are settled or paid for only upon delivery using central clearing system.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting it's obligations arising from it's financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or other financial assets or that such obligations will have to be settled in 2 manner disadvantageous to the
Funds. Liquidity risk also arises because of the possibility that the Fund could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected.
The Fund is exposed to cash redemptions of its units on a regular basis. Units are redeemable at the holder's option based on the
Fund's applicable redemption price calculated in accordance with the Fund's constitutive documents and guidelines laid down by the
Commission.

Units of the Fund are redeemable on demand at the holder's option, however, the Fund does not anticipate significant redemption of
units.

Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company Limited
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The table below analyses the Fund's financial assets and financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the statement of assets and liabilities date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the

%

contractual undiscounted cash flows.

a) Pak Qatar Income Plan

Within Over1to3 Over3to12 Over1to5 More than 5 Total
June 30, 2023 1 month months months years years
(Rupees)
Financial assets
Bank balances 1,283,968,061 1,283,968,081
Investments and profit receivable thereon 79,544,909 96,546,264 668,572,319 | 1,975,234,391 | 465,606,950 3,285,504,833
Profit receivable on bank balances 18,485,828 - - - - 18,485,828
Deposits with Trustee 100,000 - - - - 100,000
Receivable against sale of units 179,625,186 - - - - 179,625,186
1,561,723,984 96,546,264 668,572,319 1,975,234,391 465,606,950  4,767,683,908
Financial liabllities
Payable to Management Company 2,486,837 - - - - 2,486,837
Payable to Trustee 277,253 - - - 277,253
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 263,320 - - - - 263,320
3,027,410 - - - - 3,027,410
Net assets 1,558,696,674 96,546,264 668,572,319 1,975,234,381 465,606,950 4,764,656,498
b) Pak Qatar Monthly Income Plan
Within Over1to3 Over3to 12 QOverito5 More than 5 Total
June 30, 2023 1 month months months years years
(Rupees)
Financial assets
Bank balances 92,103,248 - - - - 92,103,248
Investments and profit receivable thereon 10,000,000 8,937,192 115,631,607 75,834,386 40,230,820 250,634,005
Profit receivable on bank balances 1,726,641 - - - - 1,726,641
Deposits with trustee 100,000 - - - - 100,000
103,929,889 8,937,182 115,631,607 75,834,386 40,230,820 344,563,894
Financial liabilities j
Payable to Management Company 583,030 - - - 583,030
Payable to Trustee 23,756 - - - - 23,756
Accrued expenses and other liabililies 99,982 - - - - 99,982
708,768 - - - - 708,768
Net assets 103,223,121 8,937,192 115,631,607 75,834,386 40,230,820 343,857,126
c) Pak-Qatar Khalis Bachat Plan
Within Over1to3 QOver3to12 Over1to 5 More than § Total
June 30, 2023 1 month months months years years
(Rupees)
Financial assets
Bank balances 90,152,293 - - - - 90,152,293
Investments and profit receivable thereon 15,066,533 10,880,838 58,544,211 97,317,200 40,128,491 221,937,273
Profit receivable on bank balances 1,540,106 - - - - 1,540,106
Deposits with trustee 100,000 - - - - 100,000
Receivable against sale of units 495,000 - - - - 495,000
107,353,932 10,880,838 58,544,211 97,317,200 40,128,491 314,224,672
Financial liabilities
Payable to Management Company 947,825 - - - - 947,825
Payable to Trustee 21,042 - - - 21,042
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 148,439 - - - 149,430
1,118,306 - - - - 1,118,306
Net assets 106,235,626 10,880,838 58,544,211 97,317,200 40,128,491 313,106,366
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20.4.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Pak Qatar Income Plan

Financial Assets

Bank balances

Investments

Profit receivable

Deposits with Trustee
Receivable against sale of units

Financial Liabilities

Payable to Management Company
Payable to Trustee
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Pak Qatar Monthly Income Plan

Financial Assets
Bank balances

_ Investments
" Profit receivable
Deposits with Trustee

86

Financial Liabilities

Payable to Management Company
Payable to Trustee
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

As at June 30, 2023

Amortised
Cost

At fair value

through profit or

loss

At fair value
through other

comprehensive

income

Total

1,283,968,061
75,000,000
138,014,140
100,000
179,625,186

3,090,976,521

(Rupees)

1,283,968,061
3,165,976,521
138,014,140
100,000
179,625,186

1,676,707,387

3,090,876,521

4,767,683,208

2,486,837 - - 2,486,837
277,253 - - 277,253
263,320 - - 263,320

3,027,410 - - 3,027,410

As at June 30, 2023
At fair value
Amortised ALt yaius through other
through profit or Total
Cost comprehensive
loss
income
(Rupees)

92,103,248 - - 92,103,248
10,000,000 231,102,707 - 241,102,707
11,257,939 - - 11,257,939
100,000 - - 100,000
113,461,187 231,102,707 - 344,563,894
583,030 - - 583,030
23,756 - - 23,756
99,982 - - 99,882
706,768 - - 706,768

Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company Limited



Pak Qatar Khalis Bachat Plan

Bank balances

Investments

Profit receivable

Depasits with Trustee
Receivablt against sale of units

Financial Liabilities

Payable to Management Company
Payable to Trustee
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

21. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

IFRS 13 - 'Fair Value Measurement' establishes a single source of guidance under IFRS for all fair value measurements
and disclosures about fair value measurement where such measurements are required as permitted by other [FRSs. It
defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction

Al
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As at June 30, 2023
At fair value
At fair value
Amortised : through other
Cost through profit or comprahensive Total
loss 3
income
(Rupees)

90,152,293 - - 90,152,283
15,000,000 199,452,691 - 214,452,691
9,024,688 - - 9,024,688
100,000 - - 100,000
495,000 - - 495,000
114,771,281 199,452,691 - 314,224,672
947,825 - - 947,825
21,042 - - 21,042
149,439 - - 148,439
1,118,306 r 5 1,118,306

between market participants at the measurement date (i.e. an exit price).

Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on the close of trading
i.e. period end date. The estimated fair value of all other financial assets and financial liabilities is considered no
significantly different from book value as these are short term in nature.

The following table shows financial instruments recognised at fair value based on:

Level 1:

Level 2:

quoted prices in active markets for identical assets.

either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices); and

Level 3: _

Annual Report 2023

those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability.

those with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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22 UNIT HOLDERS' FUND RISK MANAGEMENT
The Fund's capital is represented by redeemable units. The Fund is required by the NBFC Regulations, to maintain a
minimum fund size of Rs,100 million, to be maintained all the time during the life of the scheme. The units issued by the

Fund provides an investor with the right to require redemption for cash at a value proportionate to the unit holder's share in
the Fund's net assets at the redemption date.

The Fund's objective in managing the unit holders' fund is to ensure a stable base to maximise returns to all investors and
to manage liquidity risk arising from redemption. In accordance with the risk management policies, the Fund endeavors to
invest the subscriptions received in appropriate investments while maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet redemption, such
liquidity being augmented by disposal of investments.

23 PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT COMMITTEE AND FUND MANAGER

Details of members of the Investment Committee of the Fund are as follows:

Experience in

Name Designation Qualification
years
Farhan Shaukat Chief Executive Officer FCA, PGD in Islamic, Finance 24
Meraj Uddin Mazhar Chief Investment Officer CFA, FRM, MBA - 12
Syed Usman Arshad Fund Manager CIMA, ACMA 6
Muhammad Farhan Javaid Head of Risk and Research ACMA, CFA Level 1 14
23.1 Mr. Syed Usman Arshad is a fund manager who also manages following fund:
- Pak-Qatar islamic Cash Fund
June 30,
2023
24 TOP BROKERS / DEALERS BY PERCENTAGE OF COMMISSION PAID el /) IR
a) Pak Qatar Income Plan
1 Next Capital Limited . 84.34
2  Continental Exchange (Pvt.) Limited : 11.87
3 Summit Capital (Private) Limited 2.28
4  Alfalah CLSA Securities (Private) Limited 1563
b) Pak Qatar Monthly Income Plan
1 Next Capital Limited 82.82
2  Continental Exchange (Pvt.) Limited 9.37
3 Summit Capital (Private) Limited 5.36
4  Alfalah CLSA Securities (Private) Limited 2.45
c) Pak Qatar Khalis Bachat Plan
1 Next Capital Limited 93.73
2  Summit Capital (Private) Limited 5.38
3  Continental Exchange (Pvt.) Limited i 0.89

-
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As at June 30, 2023

Numberof Number of

Investment Percentage

= unit holders units Amount investment
----(Rupees)---- ===--- (%) ===emn
a) Pak Qatar Income Plan
Individual 1 40,777 4,084,295 -
Associated companies 5 47,157,743 4,723,408,367 99
Retirement fund 1 367,827 36,842,241 1
7 47,566,347 4,764,334,903 100
b) Pak Qatar Monthly Income Plan
Individual 1 4,628 463,485 -
Associated companies 2 3,431,840 343,724,966 100
3,436,468 344,188,451 100
c) Pak Qatar Khalis Bachat Plan
Individual a0 364,480 36,505,041 12
Associated companies 1 2,763,100 276,734,834 ° 88
91 3,127,590 313,239,875 100

26. ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The meeting of Board of Directors were held on September 16, 2022, October 07, 2022, October 28, 2022, February 20, 2023

and April 18, 2023.

27. GENERAL
27.1  Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rupee unless otherwise stated.

28. DISTRIBUTIONS FOR THE PERIOD

Number of Number of meetings Meetings
Name of persons
S.No. Designation | Meetings | Attendance Not
attending the meetings "Held taqiilree Attended T e
(Numbers)

1 Said Gul Chairman 5 5 5 -

2 Muhammad Owais Ansari  Director 5 5 5 -

3 Syed Asad Ali Shah Jilani  Director 5 5 5 -

4 Muhammad Kamran Director 5 5 5 2

Saleem
5 Sameera Said Director 5 8 5 -
Chief Excecutive
6 Farhan Shaukat Officer 5 5 5 -

Pak Qatar Income Pak Qatar Monthly Income

Pak Qatar Khalis Bachat

Plan Plan Plan
Date Per unit Date Per unit Date Per unit
Distributions for the period Jun 27, 2023 12.6148 OQOct 06, 2022 0.8808 27/06/2023 11.5163
Nov 28, 2022 0.9711
Dec 28, 2023 1.0194
Jan 30, 2023 1.3667
Feb 24, 2023 0.7080
Mar 28, 2023 1.6614
:Q Apr 27, 2023 1.3636
May 26, 2023 1.7824
' Jun 27, 2023 2.0110
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29, DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements are approved and authorised for issue on 23 Mlﬁ 21}23 by the Board of Directors of the
Management Company.
/

s

(Management Company)

N A e /

Gfiief Executive Officer Chidf Finahcial Officer Directo

% For Pak Qatar Asset Management Company Limited
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FUND’S INFORMATION

Management Company: Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company Limited
G-8/9, Ground Floor, Business Arcade, Block-6
P.E.C.H.S, Shahrah-e-Faisal Karachi.
UAN: (021) 111-PQAMCL (772625)
Website: www.pgamcl.com

Board of Directors Mr. Said Gul Chairman
of the Management Mr. Muhammad Owais Ansari Non-Executive Director
Company: Mr. Syed Asad Ali Shah lJilani Non-Executive Director
Mr. Muhammad Kamran Saleem Non-Executive Director
Mrs. Sameera Said Non-Executive Director
Board Audit Committee: Mr. Syed Asad Ali Shah Jilani Chairman
Mr. Muhammad Owais Ansari Member
Mr. Muhammad Kamran Saleem Member
Board Human Resource and  Mr. Syed Asad Ali Shah Jilani Chairman
Remuneration Committee: Mr. Said Gul Member
Mr. Muhammad Kamran Saleem Member
Mr. Farhan Shaukat Member
Board Risk Management Mr. Muhammad Owais Ansari Chairman
Committee: Mr. Muhammad Kamran Saleem Member
Mrs. Sameera Said Member
Chief Executive Officer of: Mr. Farhan Shaukat

The Management Company

Chief Financial Officer &: Mr. Umair Karim
Company Secretary

Chief Internal Auditor: Mr. Tahir Lateef

Trustee: Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
CDC - House, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi.

Bankers to the Fund: Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited
Meezan bank Limited

Auditors: Yousuf Adil
Chartered Accountants
Cavish Court, KCHSU,
Shahrah-e-Faisal Karachi
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REPORT OF THE FUND MANAGER

Type of Fund

Pak-Qatar Islamic Cash Fund, investing primarily in Shariah compliant money market instruments,
Sukuks etc.

Objective

To focus on generating competitive return while seeking maximum possible preservation of capital
by investing in low risk and liquid Shariah Compliant instruments in accordance with Shariah
Compliant Islamic Money Market Category.

Investment Policy and Strategy

The fund provides investors with the opportunity to park their excess liquidity in secure high-quality
instruments. To minimize the impact of interest rate volatility, the investment policy limits the
investment avenues to short term tenors. As per its investment policy, Pak-Qatar Islamic Cash Funds
can invest ot place funds in instruments/avenues with a credit rating of at least 'double A' (AA). The
weighted average maturity (WAM) of net assets invested in the plan shall not exceed ninety (90) days;
where securities issued by federal govt. shall be excluded from ascertaining WAM.

Performance Review

Pak-Qatar Islamic Cash Fund provided a return of 15.92% in Pak-Qatar Asan Munafa Plan,
17.07% in Pak-Qatar Cash Plan and 17.59% Pak-Qatar Daily Dividend Plan to its investors for
the year ended June 30, 2022 as compared to its benchmark of 6.23%.

The Fund earned a gross income of PKR. 328 million this year, which was primarily due to profit
on bank deposits, placements and Sukuks. The fund also incurred expenses totaling to PKR. 14
million which brought the net income figure to PKR. 314 million. The net assets of the Fund as
at June 30, 2022 were PKR. 203.55 million (Pak-Qatar Asan Munafa Plan), PKR 2,865.64 million
(Pak-Qatar Cash Plan) and PKR 2,158.53 million (Pak-Qatar Daily Dividend Plan).

Fund Stability Rating

PACRA Credit Rating Company has assigned Stability Rating of AA(f) to all plans of Pak-Qatar
Islamic Cash Funds.
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Asset Allocation

Others including

receivables 3.3% ‘

Cash 28.1%

Placements with
Banks & DFIs 50.3%

Sukuks &
Commercial Papers
18.3%

PAK QATAR CASH PLAN

Asset Allocation

Others including
receivables, 3.7%

Cash, 30.1%

Placements wit
Banks & DFlIs,
47.3%

Sukuks &
Commercial
Papers, 18.9%
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PAK QATAR ASAN MUNAFA PLAN

Asset Allocation

Others including
receivables 5.2%

Placements with
Banks & DFIs
40.0%

Cash 46.1%

Sukuks & -

Commercial
Papers 8.7%
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Report of the Shari'ah Advisor — Pak-Qatar Islamic Cash Fund

u"y‘u-.‘mw&-.‘-‘“ﬂbf'lﬁsy‘%“&‘?M‘JSMUM“?UJM‘

day g cCran) maiag Al e

In the capacity of Shari'ah Advisor, | have prescribed criteria and procedure to be
followed in ensuring Shari'ah compliance in every investment of Pak-Qatar
Islamic Cash Fund and | certify that:

I) | have reviewed and approved the modes of investments of Pak-Qatar
Islamic Cash Fund in light of the Shari'ah guidelines.

2) All the provisions of the fund and investments made on account of Pak-
Qatar Islamic Cash Fund are Shari'ah compliant and in accordance with
the defined criteria.

3) On the basis of information provided by the management, all the operation
of the Pak-Qatar Islamic Cash Fund for the year ended June 30, 2023
have been in compliance with Shari’ah principles.

—

=

Dr. Mufti Muham/mad Zubair Usmani
Shariah Advisor
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CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY
OF PAKISTAN LIMITED

Head Office:

CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B’
S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahra-e-Faisal
Karachi - 74400, Pakistan.

Tel :(92-21) 111-111-500
Fax: (92-21) 34326021 - 23
URL: www.cdcpakistan.com
Email: info@cdcpak.com

TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

PAK-QATAR ISLAMIC CASH FUND

Report of the Trustee pursuant to Regulation 41(h) and clause 8 of Schedule V of
the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008

We Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of Pak-Qatar
Islamic Cash Fund (the Fund) are of the opinion that Pak-Qatar Asset Management
Company Limited being the Management Company of the Fund has in all material
respects managed the Fund from October 03, 2022 to June 30, 2023 in accordance with
the provisions of the following:

(1) Limitations imposed on the investment powers of the Management Company
under the constitutive documents of the Fund;

(i1) The pricing, issuance and redemption of units are carried out in accordance with
the requirements of the constitutive documents of the Fund;

(iif) ~ The management fee, fee payable to Commission and other expenses paid from

the Fund during the period are in accordance with the applicable regulatory
framework; and

(iv)  The Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules,
2003, the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations,
2008 and the constitutive documents of the Fund.

\M( ,MLJ‘:
\
Badiuddin Akber

Chief Executive Officer
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Karachi, September 27, 2023
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*YOUSUF ADIL Yousuf Adil

Chartered Accountants

Cavish Court, A-35, Block 7 & 8
KCHSU, Shahrah-e-Faisal
Karachi-75350

Pakistan

Tel: +92 (0) 21 3454 6494-7
Fax: +92 (0) 21-34541314
www.yousufadil.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To The Unit Holders of Pak Qatar Islamic Cash Fund

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Pak Qatar Islamic Cash Fund (the Fund), which comprise the statement of
assets and liabilities as at June 30, 2023, and the income statement, statement of comprehensive income, statement of
movement in unitholders' funds and cash flow statement for the period from October 03, 2022 to June 30, 2023 (the period)
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Fund as at
June 30, 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the period then ended in accordance with accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Fund and Pak Qatar Asset Management Company Limited
(Management Company) in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan together with
the ethical requirements that are relevantto our audit of the financial statements in Pakistan, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management Company is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management Company and Board of Directors of the Management Company for the Financial
Statements

Management Company is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and for such internal control as the Management
Company determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Management Company is responsible for assessing the Fund's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless Management Company either intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors of the Management Company are responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial reporting process.

Independent Correspondent Firm to
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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YOUSUF ADIL Yousuf Adil

Chartered Accountants

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whetherthe financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable
in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with I1SAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Management Company's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Management Company.

] Conclude on the appropriateness of Management Company's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. Flowever, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to
continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with Board of Directors ofthe Management Company regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In our opinion, the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Non-Banking
Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 and Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities

Regulations, 2008.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Flena Sadiq.

Place: Karachi
Date: August 25, 2023
UDIN: AR202310057B5JxR8t3m

Independent Correspondent Firm to
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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PAK QATAR ISLAMIC CASH FUND
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AS AT JUNE 30, 2023

June 30, 2023

Pak-Qatar

Pak-Qatar Pak-Qatar Daily
AsanMunafa o L Plan  Dividend Plan et
Plan
Note - (Rupees)

Assets
Bank balances 4 116,344,580 1,691,930,705  1,296,488,762  3,104,764,047
Investments 5 83,000,000 995,000,000 830,000,000 1,908,000,000
Profit receivable 6 4,448,595 45,973,055 39,055,631 89,477,281
Receivable against sale of units 200,000 160,000,000 - 150,200,000
Advances, deposits and prepayments 7 289,187 1,261,369 734,546 2,285,102
Preliminary expenses and floatation cost 8 237,921 238,380 237,921 714,222
Total assets 204,520,283  2,884,403,509 2,166,516,860 5,255,440,652
Liabilities
Payable to Management Company 9 541,273 1,124,073 979,292 2,644,638
Payable against redemption of units - 12,500,000 5,040,000 17,540,000
Payable to Trustee 10 10,274 113,437 91,106 214,817
Payable to Commission 11 24,566 205,249 140,042 369,857
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 12 377,608 4,820,793 2,109,355 7,307,756
Dividend payable 13,265 - - 13,265
Total liabilities 966,986 18,763,552 8,359,795 28,090,333
Net assets 203,553,297 2,865,639,957  2,158,157,065 §5,227,350,319
UNIT HOLDERS' FUND
(as per Statement of movements in Unit holders' fund) 203,553,207  2,865,639,957 2,158,157,065

mmmemimamnn --- (Number of units) --====a=s----
Number of units in issue 2,032,498 28,614,509 21,581,572

mmmememceacnamennnas (RUPEES) =mmmmmmmmmemmmcenaen
Net assets value per unit 100.1493 100.1464 100.0000
Contingencies and commitments 13
The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements. /"'

For Pak Qatar Asset Management Company Limited
(Management Company)

v Ny s

K'oShe

ief Financial Officer

N -

Chiefpﬁtk:utive Officer

D[rec\@y
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For the period from October 03, 2022 to June 30, 2023

Pak-Qatar Pak-Qatar
AsanMunafa  LokQatar o bividend  Total
Cash Plan

Plan Plan
INCOME Note (Rupees)
Profit earned 14 20,859,964 181,739,686 125,615,694 328,215,344
Total income 20,859,964 181,739,686 125,615,694 328,215,344
EXPENSES
Remuneration of Management Company 9.1 972,170 2,907,358 1,938,292 5,817,820
Sindh sales tax on Management Company remuneration 9.2 126,382 377,957 251,978 756,317
Remuneration of Trustee 10.1 67,555 564,435 386,608 1,018,598
Sindh sales tax on Trustee remuneration 10.2 8,783 73,377 50,259 132,419
Annual fee of Commission 11.1 24,566 205,249 140,585 370,400
Auditor's remuneration = MG 99,440 99,440 99,440 298,320
Transaction charges i 7,105 18,105 39,628 64,838
Legal and professional charges 100,000 50,000 50,000 200,000
Amortisation of preliminary expenses and floatation costs - 8 41,310 40,851 41,310 123,471
Fund rating fee 26,578 28,987 26,578 82,143
Shariah advisory fee 133,333 133,333 133,333 399,999
Back office fee 192,550 284,632 199,008 676,190
Selling and Marketing Fee - 2,419,405 1,718,560 4,137,965
Bank charges 454 2,711 6,178 9,343
Total expenses 1,800,226 7,205,840 5,081,757 14,087,823
Net income for the period before taxation 19,059,738 174,533,846 120,533,937 314,127,521
Taxation 17 - - - -
Net income for the period after taxation 19,059,738 174,533,846 120,533,937 314,127,521
Allocation of net income for the period
Net income for the period after taxation 19,059,738 174,533,846 120,533,937 314,127,521
Income already paid on units redeemed (17,962,130) (153,272,199) - (171,234,328)

1,097,608 21,261,647 120,533,937 142,893,192
Accounting income available for distribution
Relating to capital gains - — - a
Excluding capital gains ' 1,097,608 21,261,647 120,533,937 142,893,192

1,097,608 21,261,647 120,533,937 142,893,192

The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.

b

For Pak Qatar Asset Management Company Limited
agement Company)

)~

Chief EXedytive Officer

99’*

nancial Officer Director
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PAK QATAR ISLAMIC CASH FUND
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD FROM OCTOBER 03, 2022 TO JUNE 30, 2023

For the period from October 03, 2022 to June 30, 2023

Pak-Qatar Pak-Qatar
Asan Munafa  LaKQatar oo Bividend Total
Cash Plan
Plan Plan
(Rupees)
Net income for the period after taxation 19,059,738 174,533,846 120,533,937 314,127,521
Other comprehensive income for the period - - -
Total comprehensive income for the period 19,059,738 174,533,846 120,533,937 314,127,521
The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.
4 For Pak Qatar Asset Management Company Limited
, (Management Company)
Chief Executive Officer ‘Chief Financial Officer Dirzfjrr v
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PAK QATAR ISLAMIC CASH FUND
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD FROM OCTOBER 03, 2022 TO JUNE 30, 2023

For the period from October 03, 2022 to June 30, 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income for the period before taxation

Adjustments for non cash and other items:

Amortisation of preliminary expenses and floatation costs

Profit earned

(Increase) in assets

Investments
Advances, deposits and prepayments
Preliminary expenses and floatation costs

Increase in liabilities

Payable to Management Company
Payable to Trustee

Payable to Commission

Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Dividend payable

Net cash used in operating activities

Pak-Qatar
Pak-Qatar Cash Pak-Qatar Daily
Sl i Plan Dividend Plan L
Plan
Note (Rupees)
19,059,738 174,633,846 120,533,937 314,127,521
41,310 40,851 41,310 123,471
(20,8589,964) (181,739,686) (125,615,694) (328,215,344)
(1,758,916) (7,164,989) (5,040,447) (13,964,352)
(33,000,000) (395,000,000) (280,000,000) (708,000,000)
(289,187) (1,261,369) (734,546) (2,285,102)
(279,231) (279,231) (279,231) (837,693)

(33,568,418)

(396,540,600)

(281,013,777)

(711,122,795)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net receipts from issuance of units

Net payment against redemption of units
Profit received

Dividend distribution

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period 5

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

541,273 1,124,073 979,292 2,644,638
10,274 113,437 91,106 214,817
24,566 205,249 140,042 369,857

377,608 4,820,793 2,109,355 7,307,756
13,265 ; g 13,265

966,986 6,263,552 3,319,795 10,550,333

(34,360,348)  (397,442,037)  (282,734,429)  (714,536,814)
610,905,863 |[ 10,132,380,910 |[ 2,870,891,818 || 13,614,178,591
(405,435,152)|| (7,261,439,003)|| (707,694,753)|| (8,374,568,908)

16,411,360 135,766,631 86,560,063 238,738,063
(21,177,152)||  (317,335,796)|| (120,533,937)||  (459,046,885)
200,704,928  2,689,372,742  2,129,223,191  5,019,300,861
166,344,580  2,291,930,705  1,846,488,762  4,304,764,047
" ./ :
166,344,580  2,291,930,705 1,346,433/162 4,304,764,047

18

The annexed notes from 1 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.

¢ For Pak Qatar Asset Management Company Limited

\ 2

Chief Eﬁ*ﬂlve Officer

(Management Company)

oY

hief Financial Officer
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PAK QATAR ISLAMIC CASH FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

y [

1.1

1.2

1.3

14

1.5

1.6
1.7

21

&

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Pak Qatar Islamic Cash Fund (the 'Fund") is an open-ended Shariah compliant scheme constituted under a Trust Deed
entered into on June 28, 2022 between Pak Qatar Asset Management Company Limited (PQAMCL) as the Management
Company and the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) as the Trustee. The Fund was authorised by the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (the Commission) as a unit trust scheme on September, 05 2022. The
initial public offering (IPO) of the Fund was made on Initial Offering Period from September 27, 2022 to October 03, 2022
(both days inclusive), and the Fund commenced operation from October 03, 2022. In accordance with the Trust Deed, the
first accounting period of the Fund commenced on the date on which the Fund's property was first transferred to the trustee
i.e., period commencing on October 03, 2022 and shall ending on June 30, 2023 of the succeeding calendar year. Pak-
Qatar Islamic Cash Fund has been established through a Trust Deed (the Deed) dated June 28, 2022, under the Sindh

Trusts (Amendment) Act, 2021.

The Management Company of the Fund is registered as Non Banking Finance Company (NBFC) under NBFC Rules, 2003
and has obtained the requisite license from the commission to undertake Asset Management Services. The registered
office of the Management Company is situated at Suite # G-8/9, Business Arcade, Block 6, Pakistan Employees Co-
Operative Housing Society (PECHS) , Karachi, in the province of Sindh. ;

The Fund is an open-ended Shariah Compliant Fund and offers units for public subscription on a continuous basis. The
units are transferable and can also be redeemed by surrendering to the fund.

According to the Trust Deed, the objective of the Fund is to generate competitive return while seeking maximum possible
preservation of capital by investing in low risk and liquid Shariah Compliant instruments in accordance with Shariah
Compliant Money Market category. The Fund is categorised as an open end Shariah Compliant (Islamic) Money Market
Scheme in accordance with Circular 7 of 2009, issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).
Mufti Dr. Muhammad Zubair Usmani acts as its Shariah Advisor ta ensure that the activities of the Fund are in compliance
with the principles of Shariah.

The fund has been given stability rating of "AA(f)" by PACRA on December 02, 2022,
These financial statements have been prepared from date of launch of the Fund. i.e. from October 03, 2022 to June 30,

2023 (the period), therefore these are the first set of financial statements of the Fund, and there are no corresponding
numbers in this financial statements.

The title to the assets of the Fund is held in the name of the Trustee of the Fund.
BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIII A of the repealed Companies Ordinance
1984, and

- The Non-Banking Finance Companies Rules (the NBFC Rules), the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified
Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations) and requirement of the Trust Deed.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIl A of the repealed Companies
Ordinance 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and requirements of the Trust Deed differ from the IFRS
Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIII A of the repealed Companies
Ordinance 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulation and requirements of the Trust Deed have been followed.
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2.2 New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the period from January 01,
2022:

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the period from January 01, 2022. These
standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to
have significant impact on the Company's financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

= Amendments to IFRS 3 '‘Business Combinations' - Reference to the conceptual framework
- Amendments to IAS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment' - Proceeds before intended use

- Amendments to IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets' - Onerous Cantracts — cost of
fulfilling a contract -

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle (related to IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and IAS 41)

2.3 New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are not yet effective

Effective from accounting
period beginning on or after

- Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Disclosure of January 01, 2023
accounting policies

- Amendments to IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and January 01, 2023
Errors' - Definition of accounting estimates

- Amendments to 'lAS 12 Income Taxes' - deferred tax related to assets and January 01, 2023
liabilities arising from a single transaction

Amendments to IAS 12 ' Income taxes' - International Tax Reform — Pillar Two January 01, 2023
Model Rules
- Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Classification of January 01, 2024

liabilities as current or non-current

- Amendments to IFRS 16 ' Leases' -Clarification on how seller-lessee January 01, 2024
subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions

- Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' and 'IFRS 7 ‘Financial January 01, 2024
instruments disclosures' - Supplier Finance Arrangements

- Amendments to IFRS 10 and 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Deferred indefinitely
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

Other than the aforesaid amendments, IASB has also issued the following standards which have not been adopted locally
by the Commission:

- IFRS 1 - First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
- IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts

24 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan requires the management to make estimates, judgements and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assels and liabilities, income and expenses. It also requires the management to exercise judgment in the application of its
accounting policies. The estimates, judgements and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. The areas involving a degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
estimates and assumptions are significant to the financial statements are documented in the following accounting policies,
notes and relate primarily to:

110 Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company Limited
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The areas involving a degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where estimates and assumptions are significant to the
financial statements are as follows:

Note
- Classification and valuation of financial assets 3544
- Impairment of financial assets 3114
- Classification and valuation of financial liabilities 3.1.21
B Taxation 34

The revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that year, or in the year of revision and future years if the revision affects both current and future years.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for investments which are
stated at fair value.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in these financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Fund operates. These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Fund's functional and
presentation currency. Amounts presented in these financial statements have been round off to the nearest thausand
rupees, unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The below mentioned accounting policies have been adopted for the preparation of these financial statements:
Financial instruments

Recognition and initial measurement of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities, with the exception of bank balances, are recognised in the Fund's statement of
assets and liabilities when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabllities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the income statement. This includes regular way trades: purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place. Bank balances are recognised when funds are transferred to the banks.

Classification
Debt instruments

A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at fair
value through profit or loss (FVTPL):

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt instrument is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) only if it meets both of the
following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Annual Report 2023
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A debt instrument held for trading purposes or which does not meet the solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)
criterion is classified as measured at FVTPL.

In addition, on initial recognition, the Fund may imrevocably designate a debt instrument that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL, if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. '

Business model assessment

The Fund's business model is not assessed on an instrument by instrument basis, but at a higher level of aggregated
portfolios and is based on observable factors such as: the objectives for the portfolio; how the perfermance of the business
model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated and reported to the entity's key management
personnel; the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business
model) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed etfc.

Assessments whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)

As a second step of its classification process the Fund assesses the contractual terms of financial assets to identify
whether they pass the SPPI criteria.

‘Principal' for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and may change
over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of principal or amortisation of the premium /
discount).

The most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration for the time value of
money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the Fund applies judgement and considers relevant factors such as
the currency in which the financial asset is denominated, and the period for which the interest rate is set.

In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more than de minimis exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash
flows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do not give rise to contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the amount outstanding. In such cases, the financial asset is required to be measured at
FVTPL.

3.1.1.2 Subsequent Measurment

Debt investments at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. profit calculated using the effective interest method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in the income statement.

Debt instruments at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is
reduced by impairment losses. Profit, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in the income
statement.

3.1.1.3 Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised where the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or the Fund has transferred its rights to

receive cash flows from the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a pass-through arrangement and the Fund has:

(a) Transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset; or

(b) Neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

112 Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company Limited
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When the Fund has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset (or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement), and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Fund's continuing involvement in the asset. In that case,
the fund also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the fund has retained. The Fund derecognises a financial liability when the
obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired.

3.1.1.4 Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model which requires an entity to account for expected credit losses and changes
in those expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

For financial assets other than debt securities measured at amortised cost, IFRS 9 requires recognition of impairment
based on expected credit loss (ECL) model. Under IFRS 9, the Fund is required to measure loss allowance equal to an
amount equal to lifetime ECL or 12 months ECL based an credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when
estimating ECLs, the Management Company considers reasonable and supportable information that Is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the
Fund's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

However, majority of the assets of the Fund exposed to credit risk pertain to counter parties which have high credit rating or
where credit risk has not been increased since initial recognition. Therefore, management believes that the impact of ECL
would be very minimal and hence, the same has not been accounted for in these financial statements.

3.1.1.5 Determination of fair value
The fair value of financial assets are determined as follows:

i)  Debt securities (other than Government securities)

The debt securities are valued on the basis of rates determined by the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan
(MUFAP) in accardance with the methodology prescribed by SECP for valuation of debt securities vide its Circular
No. 33 of 2012 dated 24 October 2012. In the determination of the rates, MUFAP takes into account the holding
pattern of these securities and categorises them as traded, thinly traded and non-traded securities. The circular also
specifies the valuation process to be followed for each category as well as the criteria for the provisioning of non-
performing debt securities.

ii) Debtsecurities (Government securftiés)

The government securities not listed on a stock exchange and traded in the interbank market are valued at the
average rates quoted on a widely used electronic quotation system (PKRV rates) which are based on the remaining
tenure of the securities.

3.1.2 Financial liabilities

3.1.2.1 Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at fair value
through profit or loss.

* Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, unless they are required to be measured at fair value through profit or
loss (such as instruments held for trading or derivatives) or the Fund has opted to measure them at fair value through profit
or loss.

3.1.2.2 Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income
statement.
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3.1.3  Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of assets and liabilities if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

3.2 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of bank balances and money market placements.

33 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present, legal or constructive, obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying ecanomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions, if any, are regularly reviewed and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate.

34 Taxation

The Income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under Clause 98 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than ninety percent of its accounting income for the year, as reduced
by accumulated losses and capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, is distributed to the unit holders.

The Fund is also exempt from the provisions of section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second
Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

3.5 Distribution and appropriations

Distribution and appropriations are recorded in the period in which these are approved by the Board of Directors of the
Management Company. Based on the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan's (MUFAP) guidelines duly consented by the
Commission, distribution for the year also includes portion of income already paid on units redeemed during the year.

Regulation 63 of the NBFC Regulations requires the Fund to distribute 90% of the net accounting income other than capital
gains to the unit holders.

Distributions declared subsequent to the year end / reporting date are considered as non-adjusting events and are
recognised in the financia! statements of the period in which such distributions are declared and approved by the Board of
Directors of the Management Company. ;

3.6 Issue and redemption of units

Units issued are recorded at the offer price, determined by the Management Company for the applications received by the
distributors during business hours on that date, The offer price represents the net asset value per unit as of the close of the
business day plus the allowable sales load and any provision for duties and charges, if applicable. The sales load is
payable to investment facilitators, distributors and the Management Company.

Units redeemed are recorded at the redemption price, applicable to units for which the distributors receive redemption
applications during business hours of that day. The redemption price represents the net asset value per unit as of the close
of the business day less any back-end load, any duties, taxes, and charges on redemption, if applicable.

Element of income represents the difference between net assets value per unit on the issuance or redemption date, as the
case may be, of units and the net assets value per unit at the beginning of the relevant accounting peried. Further, the
element of income is a fransaction of capital nature and the receipt and payment of element of income is taken to unit
holders' fund. However, to maintain the same ex-dividend net asset value of all units outstanding on the accounting date,
net element of income contributed on issue of units lying in unit holders fund is refunded on units in the same proportion as
dividend bears to accounting income available for distribution.

3.7 Net asset value per unit

The net asset value (NAV) per unit as disclosed in the "Statement of Assets and Liabilities" is calculated by dividing the net
assets of the Fund by the number of units in issue at the year end.
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3.8 Revenue recognition
- Gain or loss on sale of investment is accounted for in the income statement in the period in which it arises.

- Unrealised gain / loss arising on revaluation of investments classified as ‘at fair value through profit or loss' is
included in the income statement in the period in which it arises.

- income / profit from investments in sukuks, government securities, certificate of musharka, bai mujjal and commercial
paper is recognised on a time proportionate basis using effective interest rate method.

- Profit on bank balances is recognised on a time proportionate basis using bank's approved rates.

3.9 Expenses

All expenses chargeable to the Fund including remuneration of the Management Company, Trustee fee, annual fee of the
Commission and selling and marketing expense are recognised in the income statement on an accrual basis.

3.10 Basis of allocation of expenses to each sub-fund

- Remuneration to the Management Company, Trustee, annual fee to the commission and selling and marketing
expense is allocated to each sub-fund on the basis of the net assets of the sub-fund.

- Expenses specifically incurred by a sub-fund, such as custody and settlement charges, fees and subscription and
bank charges are charged to that sub-fund.

- Auditors' remuneration and legal and professional charges are allocated equally among sub-funds.

3.1 Earnings per unit

Earnings per unit (EPU) has not been disclosed as in the opinion of the Management, determination of weighted average
units for calculating EPU is not practicable.

June 30, 2023
Pak-Qatar Pak-Qatar

Asan Munafa it Daily Dividend Total
Cash Plan
Plan Plan
Note (Rupees)
4. BANK BALANGES '
Savings accounts 4.1 116,344,580 1,691,930,705 1,296,488,762 3,104,764,047
4.1 The rate of return on these savings accounts ranges from 11% to 19.25% per annum.
June 30, 2023
Pak-Qatar Pak-Qatar
AsanMunata  FBR-QAIEr oL ividend  Total
Cash Plan
Plan Plan
Note (Rupees)
5. INVESTMENTS
At fair value through profit or loss
-Sukuk certificates - Listed 5.1 33,000,000 395,000,000 280,000,000 708,000,000
At amortised cost
-Money Market Placements 5.2 50,000,000 600,000,000 550,000,000 1,200,000,000

83,000,000 995,000,000 830,000,000 1,908,000,000

N
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PAK-QATAR
ASSET MANAGEMENT
a June 30, 2023
Pak-Qatar Pak-Qatar
Asan Munafa pak-Qatar Dally Dividend Total
Cash Plan
Plan Plan
Note (Rupees)
6. PROFIT RECEIVABLE
Profit receivable from:

-Savings account 2,487,211 26,229,600 22,310,651 51,027,462
-Placements 125,000 1,500,000 1,375,000 3,000,000
-Sukuk certificates 1,836,384 18,243,455 15,369,980 35,449,819

4,448,595 45,973,055 39,055,631 89,477,281

7. ADVANCES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Deposits with Trustee 100,000 100,000 100,000 300,000
Advance tax 165,099 1,137,281 610,458 1,912,838
Prepaid rating fee 24,088 24,088 24,088 72,264
289,187 1,261,369 734,546 2,285,102
8. PRELIMINARY EXPENSES AND FLOATATION COST
Cost 279,231 279,231 279,231 837,693
Accumulated amortisation
Opening balance - - - - =
__Amortisation during the period 8.1 41,310 40,851 41,310 123,471
Closing balance 41,310 40,851 41,310 123,471
237,921 238,380 237,921 714,222
B.1 Preliminary expenses and floatation costs represent expenditure incurred prior to the commencement of operations of the

Fund. These costs are amortised over a period of five years in accordance with clause 15.3.1 set out in the Trust Deed of
the Fund and the requirements set out in Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008.

June 30, 2023

Pak-Qatar Pak-Qatar Pak-Qatar
Asan Munafa Daily Dividend Total
Plan Cash Plan Plan
Note (Rupees)
9. PAYABLE TO MANAGEMENT COMPANY Side
Management fee 9.1 123,982 456,304 366,479 946,765
Sindh sales tax on of the Management fee 9.2 16,117 59,320 47,642 123,079
Other payable to Management Company 72,409 14,561 B 86,970
Selling and marketing expense 9.3 - 281,654 252,937 534,591
Back office fee payable 9.4 86,254 69,723 69,723 225,700
Preliminary expenses and floatation costs payable 242,511 242,511 242,511 727,633
541,273 1,124,073 979,292 2,644,638

A\
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9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

120

As per Regulation 61 of the NBFC Regulations, 2008, the Management Company is entitled to a remuneration equal to an
amount not exceeding the maximum rate of the management fee as disclosed in the Offering Document subject into the total
expense ratio limit. As per Offering Document the management company can charge management fee upto 1%, 0.5% and
0.5% of Average annual Net Assets on PQAMP, PQCP and PQDDP respectively. The fee is payable monthly in arrears to the
Management Company. The Management Company has charged management fee at the following rates:

Pak Qatar Pak Qatar Pak Qatar Daily
Asan Munafa Plan Cash Plan Dividend Plan
From 03 From 03 From 28 From 03 From 28

October, 2022 to

From 28
November, 2022

October, 2022 to

November, 2022

October, 2022 to

November, 2022

27 November, 27 November, 27 November,
2022 to 30 June, 2023 2022 to 30 June, 2023 2022 to 30 June, 2023
1.00% on the 0.75% on the 0.50% on the 0.25% on the 0.50% on the 0.25% on the

average annual
net assets of the

Fund

average annual
net assets of the
Fund

average annual
net assets of the

average annual
net assets of the

Fund

average annual
net assets of the

average annual
net assets of the
Fund

Fund

The fee is payable monthly in arrears to the Management Company.

Sindh sales tax on services at the rate of 13% on gross value of management fee is charged under the provisions of Sindh
sales tax on Services Act, 2011.

The SECP has allowed the Asset Management Companies to charge selling and marketing expenses to all categories of open-
end mutual funds (except fund of funds).

The asset management company can charge selling and marketing expenses to the Fund based on its discretion subject to
not being higher than actual expenses.

The Management Company has charged selling and marketing expenses at following rates:

Pak Qatar Asan Pak Qatar Pak Qatar Dally
Munafa Plan Cash Plan Dividend Plan
From 28 November, From 28 November, From 01 January, From 28 November, From 01 January,
2022 to 30 June, 2022 to 31 2023 to 30 June, 2022 to 31 2023 to 30 June,
2023 December, 2022 2023 December, 2022 2023
0.50% on the 0.25% on the 0.50% on the 0.25% on the
Nil average annual net average annual net average annual net average annual nel

assets of the Fund

asseis of the Fund

assets of the Fund

assets of the Fund

In accordance with Regulation 60 of the NBFC Regulations, the Management Company is entitied to charge fees and
expenses related to registrar services, accounting, operation and valuation services, related to Collective Investment Scheme
(CIS). The Management Company has allocated expenses at the rate of 0.10% of the average annual net assets of the Fund.
The Management Company has charged allocated expenses at the following rates:

Pak Qatar Asan
Munafa Plan

Pak Qatar
Cash Plan

Pak Qatar Daily
Dividend Plan

From 03 October,

From 03 October,

From 01 January,

From 03 October,

From 01 January,

2022 to 30 June, 2022 to 31 2023 to 30 June, 2022 to 31 2023 to 31 March,
2023 December, 2022 2023 December, 2022 2023
0.10% on the 0.10% on the 0.10% on the
average annual net average annual net Nil average annual net Nil

assets of the Fund

assets of the Fund

assets of the Fund

Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company Limited



10. PAYABLE TO TRUSTEE

Trustee fee

Sindh sales tax payable on remuneration of

the Trustee

Al

3

PAK-QATAR
ASSET MANAGEMENT
June 30, 2023
Pak-Qatar Pak-Qatar Pak-Qatar Total
Asan Munafa Cash Plan  Daily Dividend
Plan Plan
Note (Rupees)
10.1 9,092 100,387 80,625 190,104
10.2 1,182 13,050 10,481 24,713
10,274 113,437 91,106 214,817

10.1  The Trustee is entitled to monthly remuneration for services rendered to the fund at the flat rate of 0.055% per annum of

average net assets.

10.2  Sales tax on trustee remuneration has been charged at the rate of 13%.

11. PAYABLE TO THE COMMISSION

Annual fee payable

June 30, 2023

Pak-Qatar Pak-Qatar Pak-Qatar Total
Asan Munafa Cash Plan  Daily Dividend
Plan Plan
Note (Rupees)
111 24,566 205,249 140,042 369,857

11.1 Under the provisions 60(3)(h) of the Non- Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulation, 2008, all Collective
Investment Schemes are required to pay an annual fee, to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, an

amount equal to 0.02% of the average annual net assets of the scheme.

12 ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABLITIES

Commission Payable

Legal and professional charges payable
Auditor's remuneration payable
Withholding tax payable

Capital gain tax payable

13. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

June 30, 2023

Pak-Qatar Pak-Qatar Pak-Qatar Total
Asan Munafa Cash Plan  Daily Dividend
Plan Plan
{Rupees)

325 7,558 10,877 18,760

84,232 18,484 18,464 121,160
63,800 63,800 63,800 191,400
199,669 909,187 2,016,214 3,125,070
29,582 3,821,784 - 3,851,366
377,608 4,820,793 2,109,355 7,307,756

There were no contingencies and commitments as at June 30, 2023.

14. PROFIT EARNED

Profit earned on:
Savings accounts
Profit on Placements
Profit from Sukuk certificates

&

Annual Report 2023

For the period from October 03, 2022 to June 30, 2023

Pak-Qatar Pak-Qatar Pak-Qatar Total
Asan Munafa Cash Plan.  Daily Dividend
Plan Plan
(Rupees)

16,148,308 139,858,250 96,288,220 252,294,779

125,000 3,956,233 3,414,658 7,495,891

4,586,655 37,925,203 25,912,816 68,424,674

20,859,964 181,739,686 125,615,694 328,215,344
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PAK-QATAR
ASSET MANAGEMENT
For the period from October 03, 2022 to June 30, 2023
Pak-Qatar Pak-Qatar Pak-Qatar Total
Asan Munafa Cash Plan  Daily Dividend
(Rupees)
15. AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION
Audit fee 83,704 83,704 83,704 251,112
Out of Pocket 8,370 8,370 8,370 25,110
Sindh sales tax on services 7,366 7,366 7,366 22,098
99,440 99,440 99,440 298,320
16.  TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO

122

17.

18.

19.

The total expense ratio (TER) of the Asan Munafa Plan, Cash Plan and Daily Dividend Plan as at June 30, 2023 is 1.08%,
0.52% and 0.563% among which 0.09%, 0.05% and 0.04% respectively represents government levies on the Fund such as
sales tax and annual fees to the commission.

TAXATION

As disclosed in note 3.4 the Fund's Income is exempt from Income tax as per clause (99) of part | of the Second Schedule
to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, subject to the condition as mentioned in the said note. Furthermore, as per regulation
63 of the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulation, 2008, the Fund is required to distribute 90% of
the net accounting income other than unrealised capital gains to the unit holders. Since, the management have distributed
the income earned by the Fund during the period to the unit holders in the manner as explained above, accordingly, no
provision for taxation has been made in these financial statements. Further, the Fund is also exempt from the provision of
Section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

For the period from October 05, 2022 to June 30, 2023

Pak-Qatar Asan Pak-Qatar Cash Pak-Qatar Daily Total
Munafa Plan Plan Dividend Plan

{ Rupees )

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Savings accounts z 4.1 116,344,580 1,681,930,705 1,296,488,762 3,104,764,047
Money market placements 5.2 50,000,000 600,000,000 550,000,000 1,200,000,000

166,344,580 2,291,930,705 1,846,488,762 4,304,764,047

TRANSACTIONS WITH CONNECTED PERSONS / RELATED PARTIES

Related parties / connected persons of the Fund include Pak Qatar Asset Management Company (being the "Management
Company") and its related entities, the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (being the trustee of the Fund),
other collective investment schemes, pension fund schemes managed by the Management Company, directors, key
management personnel and other associated undertaking and connected persons. Connected persons also include any
person benefically owing directly or indirectly 10% or more units in the issue / net assets of the Fund.

Transactions with connected persons essentially comprise sale and redemption of units, fee on account of managing of
affairs of the Fund, other charges, sale and purchase of investments and distribution of payments of investments and
distribution payments to connected persons. The transactions with connected persons are in the normal course of the
business, at contracted rates and at terms determined in accordance with market rates.

Remuneration to the Management Company and the trustee of the Fund is determined in accordance with the provisions of
the NBFC Regulations and notified entities regulations, 2008 and trust deed.

Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company Limited
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20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Fund's objective in managing risk is the creation and protection of unit holders' value. Risk is inherent in the Fund's
activities, but it is managed through monitoring and controlling activities which are primarily set up to be performed based
on limits established by the Management Company, the constitutive documents of the Fund and the regulations and
directives of the Commission. These limits reflect the business strategy and market environment of the Fund as well as the
level of the risk that the Fund is willing to accept. The Board of Directors of the Management Company supervises the
overall risk management approach within the Fund. The Fund is exposed to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk arising
from the financial instruments it holds.

20.1 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of
changes in market prices.

The Management Company manages market risk by monitoring exposure on marketable securities by following the internal

risk management policies and investment guidelines approved by the Board and the regulations laid down by the
commission, the NBFC regulations and the NBFC rules,

Market risk comprises of three types of risk: currency risk, profit rate risk and price risk.

20.1.1 Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes
in foreign exchange rates. At present, the Fund is not exposed to currency risk as all the transactions are carried out in
Pakistani Rupees.

20.1.2 Profit rate risk
Profit rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes
in market profit rates. As of June 30, 2023, the Fund is exposed to such risk on balances held with banks, Sukuks and

Money market placements. The Investment Committee of the Fund reviews the portfolio of the Fund on a regular basis to
ensure that the risk is managed within the acceptable limits.

As of June 30, 2023 details of Fund's profit bearing financial instruments were as follows:

June 30, 2023

Pak-Qatar
Pak-Qatar  Pak-Qatar Daily
AsanMUnaf@  GashPlan  Dividend Plan L
Note * { Rupees )
Variable rate instrument
(financial asset)

Bank balances 4 116,344,580 1,691,930,705 1,286,488,762 3,104,764,047
Sukuk certificates 5.1 33,000,000 395,000,000 280,000,000 708,000,000

149,344,680 2,086,930,705  1,576,488,762 3,812,764,047

June 30, 2023

A:::.I\?Ert:;\rfa Pak-Qatar Pak-Qatar Daily Total
Cash Plan Dividend Plan
Plan
( Rupees )
Fixed rate instrument
(financial asset)
Money Market Placements 5.2 50,000,000 600,000,000 550,000,000 1,200,000,000

%

Annual Report 2023 125



Al

3

PAK-QATAR

ASSET MANAGEMENT

126

Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

As at June 30, 2023, the Fund holds KIBOR based sukuks certificates and profit based balances with banks which expose
the Fund to profit rate risk. In case of 100 basis points increase/decrease in applicable rates on the last repricing date with
all other variables held constant, the net income / loss for the year and net assets of the Fund would have been

higher/lower by Rs 38.128 million.

Yield rate sensitivity position for on-balance sheet financial instruments is based on the earlier of contractuai repricing or
maturity date and for off-balance sheet financial instruments is based on settlement date.

a) Pak Qatar Asan Munafa Plan

As at June 30, 2023

Exposed to yield risk

More than Not exposed
FaTimgacy Eheciiv Upto three | three months | More than | to yielz rate Total
yield / rate
months andup toone| oneyear risk
year
~ee(%) === (Rupees)

On-balance sheet financial instruments
Financial assets ;
Bank balances 145-19.25 116,344,580 - - - 116,344,580
Investments

- Sukuk certificates 16.3-25.9 - - 33,000,000 - 33,000,000

- Money market placements 205 50,000,000 - - - 50,000,000
Profit receivable - - - 4,448,595 4,448,595
Deposit with trustee - - - 100,000 100,000
Receivable against sale of units - - - 200,000 200,000
Sub total 166,344,580 - 33,000,000 4,748,595 204,093,175
Financial liabilities
Payable to the Management Company - - - 541,273 541,273
Payable to the Trustee - - - 10,274 10,274
Dividend payable - - - 13,265 13,265
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - - - 148,357 148,357
Sub total ; - - - 713,169 713,169
On-balance sheet gap 166,344,580 < 33,000,000 4,035,426 203,380,006
Total profit rate sensitivity gap 166,344,580 - 33,000,000 4,035,426 203,380,006
Cumulative profit rate sensitivity gap 166,344,580 166,344,580 199,344,580

Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company Limited
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20.1.3  Pricerisk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in
market prices (other than those arising from profit rate risk or currency risk) whether those changes are caused by factors
specific to the individual financial instrument or'its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the
market. Since the Fund is not allowed to invest in equity securities, hence it is not exposed to equity price risk.

20.2 Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk of loss if counterparties fail to perform as contracted. The Fund is exposed to counter party
credit risks on investment in sukuk certificates, money market placements, profit receivables, receivable against sale of
units, security deposit and balances with banks. The credit risk for Fund is limited because the counterparties are financial

institutions with reasonably high credit ratings.

The Fund has adopted a paolicy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of
financial loss from defaults. This information is supplied by independent rating agencies, where available, and if not
available, the Fund uses other publicly available financial information and its own trading records to rate its major
customers. The Fund's exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate
value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties.

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed in accordance with the Fund's policy.
Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each
counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are approved by the Beard of Directors of the management company. The limits
are set to minimise the concentration of risk and therefore mitigate financial loss through potential counterparty failure.

The Fund's maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying amounts of following financial assets.

June 30, 2023

Balance as per

Pak-Qatar Asan Pak-Qatar Cash Pak-Qatar Daily  statement of Maximum
Munafa Plan Plan Dividend Plan assets and exposure
liabllities
(Rupees)

Bank balances 116,344,580  1,691,930,705  1,296,488,762 3,104,764,047  3,104,764,047
Investments 83,000,000 995,000,000 830,000,000 1,908,000,000  1,908,000,000
Profit receivable 4,448,595 45,973,055 39,055,631 89,477,281 89,477,281
Deposits with trustee . 100,000 100,000 100,000 300,000 - 300,000
Receivable against sale of units © 200,000 150,000,000 - 150,200,000 150,200,000

204,093,175  2,883,003,760 2,165,644,393 5,252,741,328 5,252,741,328

The analysis below summaries the credit rating quality of the Fund's financial assets as at June 30, 2023.

Bank Balances and profit receivable thereon by rating category
June 30, 2023

Rating Rupees (%)

AA 3,136,859,880 99

AAA 18,931,629 1
; 3,155,791,509 100

Above ratings are on the basis of availabie ratings assigned by PACRA and VIS Credit Rating Company Limited (Formally
JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company Limited) as of June 30, 2023.

Security deposits

Deposits are placed with Trustee It is expected that all deposits with trustee will be clearly identified as being assets of the
Fund, hence management believes that the Fund is not materially exposed to a credit risk with respect to such deposits.

N

Annual Report 2023 127



Al

3

PAK-QATAR

ASSET MANAGEMENT

b) Pak Qatar Cash Plan

As at June 30, 2023

128

Exposed to yield risk
i : More than Not exposed
Eiljothes yiE:'f;il:_:fa Upto three | three months | More than | to yield rate Total
months and uptoone| oneyear risk
year
—(%)--- (Rupees)
On-halance sheet financial instruments
Financial assets
Bank balances 16-19.25 1,691,930,705 - - - 1,691,930,705
Investments
- Sukuk certificates 16.3-25.9 - - 395,000,000 - 385,000,000
- Money market placements 20.5 600,000,000 - - - 600,000,000
Profit receivable - - - 45,973,055 46,973,055
Deposit with trustee - - - 100,000 100,000
Recelvable against sale of units - - - 150,000,000 150,000,000
Sub total 2,291,930,705 - 395,000,000 196,073,055 2,883,003,760
Financial liabllities
Payable to the Management Company - - - 1,124,073 1,124,073
Payable to the Truslee - - - 113,437 113,437
Payable against redemption of units - - - 12,500,000 12,500,000
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - - - 89,822 89,822
Sub total - - - 13,827,332 13,827,332
On-balance sheet gap 2,291,930,705 - 395,000,000 182,245,723 2,869,176,428
Total profit rate sensitivity gap 2,281,930,705 - 395,000,000 182,245,723 2,869,176,428

Cumulative profit rate sensitivity gap

c) Pak-Qatar Dally Dividend Plan

2,291,930,705 2,291,930,705 2,686,930,705

As at June 30, 2023
Exposed to yleld risk
Particulars Ef More than Not exposed
Botive Upto three | three months | More than | to yield rate Total
yield / rate
months and up to one one year risk
: year
—ee(%a)==m (Rupees)
On-balance sheet financial instruments
Financial assets
Bank balances 15-19.25 1,296,488,762 - - - 1,296,488,762
Investments
- Sukuk certificates 16.3-25.9 - - 280,000,000 - 280,000,000
- Money market placements 20.5 550,000,000 - - - 550,000,000
Profit receivable - - - 39,055,631 38,055,631
Deposit with trustee - - - 100,000 100,000
Sub total 1,846,488,762 - 280,000,000 39,155,631 2,165,644,393
Financial liabilities
Payable to the Management Company - - 879,292 879,292
Payable to the Trustee - - - 91,106 91,106
Payable against redemption of units - - - 5,040,000 5,040,000
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - - - 93,141 93,141
Sub total - - - 6,203,539 6,203,539
On-balance sheet gap 1,846, 488,762 - 280,000,000 32,952,092 2,159,440,854
Tatal profit rate sensitivity gap 1,846,488,762 - 280,000,000 32,952,092 2,159,440,854

Cumulative profit rate sensitivity gap

1,846,488,762 1,846,488,762 2,126,488,762

Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company Limited
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Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of counterparties
whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Fund’s total credit exposure. The Fund's portfolio of financial
instruments is broadly diversified and transactions are entered into with diverse credit-worthy counterparties thereby mitigating
any significant concentration of credit risk.

Settlement risk

The Fund's activities may give rise to risk at the time of settlement of transactions. Settlement risk is the risk of loss due to the
failure of counter party to honour its obligations to deliver cash, securities or other assets as contractually agreed. Credit risk
relating to unsettled transactions in securities is considered to be minimal as the Fund uses brokers with high creditworthiness
and the fransactions are settled or paid for only upon delivery using central clearing system.

20.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting it's obligations arising from it's financial liabilities that
are settled by delivering cash or other financial assets or that such obligations will have to be settled in a manner
disadvantageous to the Funds. Liquidity risk also arises because of the possibility that the Fund could be required to pay its
liabilities earlier than expected. The Fund is exposed to cash redemptions of its units on a regular basis. Units are redeemable
at the holder's option based on the Fund's applicable redemption price calculated in accordance with the Fund's constitutive
documents and guidelines laid down by the commission. j

Units of the Fund are redeemable on demand at the holder's option, however, the Fund does not anticipate significant
redemption of units.

The table below analyses the Fund's financial assets and financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the statement of assets and liabilities date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

a) Pak Qatar Asan Munafa Plan
Within Over1to3 Over3to12 Over1to5 Morethan5

June 30, 2023 1 month months months years years Sl
(Rupees)
Financial assets
Bank balances 116,344,580 - IR - - 116,344,580
Investments and profit receivable thereon 25125,000 41,836,384 18,000,000 - - 84,961,384
Profit receivable on bank balances 2,487,211 - - - - 2,487,211
Deposits with trustee - - - - 100,000 100,000
Receivable against sale of units 200,000 - - - - 200,000
144,156,781 41,836,384 18,000,000 - 100,000 204,093,175
Financial liabilities
Payable tc Management Company 298,762 - - - 242 511 541,273
Payable to Trustee 10,274 - - - - 10,274
Dividend payable 13,265 - - - - 13,265
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 148,357 - - - - 148,357 |
470,858 - - - 242,511 713,169
Net assets 143,686,133 41,836,384 18,000,000 - (142,511) 203,380,006

N
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b) Pak-Qatar Cash Plan

June 30, 2023

Over3to12 Over1to5 Morethan5

Financial assets

Bank balances

Investments and profit receivable thereon
Profit receivable on bank balances
Depaosits with trustee

Receivable against sale of units

Financial liabilities

Payable to Management Company
Payable to Trustee

Payable against redemption of units
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Net assets

c) Pak-Qatar Daily Dividend Plan

June 30, 2023

Financial assets

Bank balances

Investments and profit receivable thereon
Profit receivable on bank balances
Deposits with trustee

Financial liabilities

Payable to Management Company
Payable to Trustee

Payable against redemption of units
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Net assets

Within Over1to 3 Total

1 month months months years years

(Rupees)
1,691,930,705 - - - - 1,691,930,705
301,500,000 || 418,243,455 || 295,000,000 - - 1,014,743,455
26,229,600 - - - - 26,229,600
E - - - 100,000 100,000
150,000,000 - - - - 150,000,000
2,169,660,305 418,243,455 295,000,000 - 100,000 2,883,003,760
881,562 - - - 242,511 1,124,073
113,437 - - - - 113,437
12,500,000 - - - - 12,500,000
89,822 - - - - 89,822
13,584,821 - - - 242,511 13,827,332
2,156,075,484 418,243,455 295,000,000 - (142,511) 2,869.176..42'8
Within Over1to 3 Over3to12 Overito5 Morethan5 Total
1 month months months years years
(Rupees)

1,296,488,762 - - - - 1,296,488,762
276,375,000 || 410,369,880 || 160,000,000 - - 846,744,980
22,310,651 - - - - 22,310,651
- - - - 100,000 100,000
1,595174,413 410,368,980 160,000,000 - 100,000 2,165,644,393
736,781 - - - 242,511 979,292
91,106 - - - - 91,108
5,040,000 : 2 = - 5,040,000
93,141 - - - s 93,141
5,961,028 - - - 242,511 6,203,539
1,689,213,385 410,369,980 160,000,000 - (142,511) 2,159,440,854

130

Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company Limited




Al

3

N

Annual Report 2023

PAK-QATAR
ASSET MANAGEMENT
20.4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
As at June 30, 2023
At fair value
At fair value
Amortised : ; through other
|
Cost Swoogh profit comprehensive Teta
or loss p
income
(Rupees)
Pak-Qatar Asan Munafa Plan
Financial Assets
Bank balances 116,344,580 - 116,344,580
Investments 50,000,000 33,000,000 83,000,000
Profit receivable 4,448,595 - 4,448,595
Deposits with Trustee 100,000 - 100,000
Receivable against sale of units 200,000 - 200,000
171,093,175 33,000,000 204,093,175
Financial Liabilities
Payable to Management Company 541,273 541,273
Payable to Trustee 10,274 - 10,274
Dividend payable 13,265 - 13,265
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 148,357 - 148,357
713,169 - 713,169
Pak-Qatar Cash Plan
Financial Assets
Bank balances 1,691,930,705 - 1,691,930,705
Investments 600,000,000 395,000,000 995,000,000
Profit receivable 45,973,055 - 45,973,055
Receivable against sale of units 150,000,000 “ 150,000,000
Deposits with Trustee 100,000 - 100,000
2,488,003,760 395,000,000 2,883,003,760
Financial Liabilities
Payable to Management Company 1,124,073 - 1,124,073
Payable to Trustee 113,437 - 113,437
Payable against redemption of units 12,500,000 “ 12,500,000
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 89,822 - 89,822
13,827,332 - 13,827,332
Pak-Qatar Daily Dividend Plan
Financial Assets
Bank balances 1,296,488,762 - 1,296,488,762
Investments 550,000,000 280,000,000 830,000,000
Profit receivable 39,055,631 - 39,055,631
Deposits with Trustee 100,000 - 100,000
1,885,644,393 280,000,000 2,165,644,393
Financial Liabilities
Payable to Management Company 979,292 - 979,202
Payable to Trustee 91,106 - 91,106
Payable against redemption of units 5,040,000 - 5,040,000
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 93,141 - 93,141
6,203,539 - 6,203,539
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22, UNIT HOLDERS' FUND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Fund's capital is represented by redeemable units. The Fund is required by the NBFC Regulations, to maintain a
minimum fund size of Rs.100 million, to be maintained all the time during the life of the scheme. The units issued by the
Fund provides an investor with the right to require redemption for cash at a value proportionate to the unit holder's share in
the Fund's net assets at the redemption date.

The Fund's objective in managing the unit holders' fund is to ensure a stable base to maximise returns to all investors and to
manage liquidity risk arising from redemption. In accordance with the risk management policies, the Fund endeavors to

invest the subscriptions received in appropriate investments while maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet redemption, such
liquidity being augmented by disposal of investments.

23. PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT COMMITTEE AND FUND MANAGER

Details of members of the investment Committee of the Fund are as follows:

Name Designation Qualification E’fperie"ce
in years
Farhan Shaukat Chief Executive Officer FCA, PGD in Islamic Finance 24
Meraj-Uddin Mazhar Chief Investment Officer CFA, FRM, MBA 12
Syed Usman Arshad Fund Manager CIMA, ACMA 6
Muhammad Farhan Javaid Head of Risk and Research ACMA, CFA Level-| 14
231  Mr. Syed Usman Arshad is a fund manager who also manages following fund:
- Pak-Qatar Islamic Income Fund
June 30,
2023
24, TOP BROKERS / DEALERS BY PERCENTAGE OF COMMISSION PAID (Percentage)
Pak-Qatar Cash Plan
Next Capital Limited 100
Pak-Qatar Daily Dividend Plan
Next Capital Limited ;i 100
25. PATTERN OF UNIT HOLDING
As at June 30, 2023
Numperof Number of Investment Percentage
unit :
units Amount investment
holders
a) Pak Qatar Asan Munafa Plan -----(Rupees)--—- -=~(%)==-
Individual 78 144,546 14,476,225 74
Associated companies 3 1,724,822 172,739,677 85
Retirement fund 1 163,130 16,337,395 8
82 2,032,498 203,553,297 100
b) Pak Qatar Cash Plan
Individual 32 6,886,105 689,618,634 24
Associated companies 4 16,601,294 1,662,559,778 58
Retirement fund 7  5127,110 513,461,545 18
43 28,614,509 2,865,639,957 100
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As at June 30, 2023
Numb;r of Number of Investment Percentage
s units Amount investment
holders
c) Pak-Qatar Daily Dividend Plan -----(Rupees)----- “=e(%)---
individual 14 2,625,469 262,546,860 12
Associated companies : 3 5,587,794 558,779,441 26
Other corporate 7 12,889,190 1,288,918,845 60
Retirement fund 2 479,119 47,911,919 2

26 21,581,572 2,158,157,065 100

26. ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The meeting of Board of Directors were held on September 16, 2022, October 07, 2022, October 28, 2022, February 20,
2023 and April 18, 2023.

Number of Number of meetings
Held required

(Numbers)
Said Gul Chairman 5 5 5 -
Muhammad Owais Ansari Directar 5 5 5 -
Syed Asad Ali Shah Jilani Director 5 5 5 -
Muhammad Kamran Saleem Director 5 5 5
Sameera Said Director 5 5 5 -
Farhan Shaukat Chief Executive Officer 5 5 5 #

27. GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rupee unless otherwise stated.

28. DISTRIBUTIONS FOR THE PERIOD Pak-Qatar Asan Pak-Qatar Cash
Munafa Plan Plan

; -Date Per unit Date Per unit

Distributions for the year 27/06/2023 11.618 27/06/2023 12.469

Pak-Qatar Daily Dividend Pian:

The cummulative distribution for the period from October 03, 2022 to June 30, 2023 amounts to Rs. 12.594. //

29. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements are approved and authorised for issue on 23 AUG 233 by the Board of Directors of the
Management Company.

- For Pak Qatar Asset Management Company Limited
(Management Company)
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Suite # G7 - G8, Business Arcade, Block 6, P.E.C.H.S.,
Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi-75400.
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